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3M COMPANY
FORM 10-Q
For the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2016
PART I. Financial Information

Iltem 1. Financial Statements.

3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income

(Unaudited)
Three months ended
March 31,

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015
Nel sales $ 7,409 $ 7,578
Operating expenses

Cost of sales 3,678 3,821

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,493 1,564

Research, development and related expenses 450 463

Total operating expenses 5,621 5,848

Operating income 1,788 1,730
Interest expense and income

Interest expense 47 31

Interest income (5) 4

Total interest expense — net 42 27

Income before income taxes 1,746 1,703
Provision for income taxes 468 502
Net income including noncontrolling intere $ 1,278 $ 1,201
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenesst 3 2
Net income attributable to 3| $ 1,275 $ 1,199
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding € bas 607.4 636.2
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slddelhs — basic $ 210 $ 1.88
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding dtedil 621.3 649.2
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slddehs — diluted $ 2.05 $ 1.85
Cash dividends paid per 3M common share $ 111 $ 1.025

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatke&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited)

Three months ended

March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Net income including noncontrolling interest $ 1,278 $ 1,201
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 138 (193
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plafpssatient 69 91
Debt and equity securities, unrealized gain (loss) — —
Cash flow hedging instruments, unrealized gainsjlos (110) 70
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 97 (32)
Comprehensive income (loss) including noncontrgliimerest 1,375 1,169
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to norrediimg interest (2) (2)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to 3M $ 1,373 $ 1,167

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Unaudited)
March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in millions, except per share amount) 2016 2015
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,337 $ 1,798
Marketable securities — current 176 118
Accounts receivable — net 4,485 4,154
Inventories
Finished goods 1,699 1,655
Work in process 1,157 1,008
Raw materials and supplies 771 855
Total inventories 3,627 3,518
Other current assets 1,249 1,398
Total current assets 10,874 10,986
Marketable securities — non-current 15 9
Investments 115 117
Property, plant and equipment 23,564 23,098
Less: Accumulated depreciation (14,950) (14,583)
Property, plant and equipment — net 8,614 8,515
Goodwill 9,375 9,249
Intangible assets — net 2,551 2,601
Prepaid pension benefits 226 188
Other assets 1,212 1,053
Total assets 32,982 $ 32,718
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current portion of lorgat debt 2,212 $ 2,044
Accounts payable 1,581 1,694
Accrued payroll 468 644
Accrued income taxes 590 332
Other current liabilities 2,327 2,404
Total current liabilities 7,178 7,118
Long-term debt 8,927 8,753
Pension and postretirement benefits 3,454 3,520
Other liabilities 1,649 1,580
Total liabilities 21,208 $ 20,971
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Equity
3M Company shareholders’ equity:
Common stock par value, $.01 par value, 944,033sb5ées issued 9 $ 9
Additional paid-in capital 4,916 4,791
Retained earnings 36,785 36,575
Treasury stock, at cost: 337,518,526 shares ativ2ikc2016; 334,702,932 shares at
December 31, 2015 (23,716) (23,308)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (6,261 (6,359
Total 3M Company shareholders’ equity 11,733 11,708
Noncontrolling intere: 41 39
Total equity 11,774  $ 11,747
Total liabilities and equity 32,982 $ 32,718

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.




3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
Three months ended
March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income including noncontrolling intere 1,278 $ 1,201
Adjustments to reconcile net income including narioalling interest to net
cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 356 339
Company pension and postretirement contributions (56) (91)
Company pension and postretirement expense 59 134
Stock-based compensation expense 144 138
Deferred income taxes (38) 44
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — (201
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (245, (296,
Inventories 37) (131)
Accounts payable (116 56
Accrued income taxes (current and long-term) 334 100
Other — net (419 (313
Net cash provided by operating activit 1,260 1,080
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (314 (291
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 18 4
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (4) (150
Purchases of marketable securities and investments (225) (191)
Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketablergEs and investments 164 605
Proceeds from sale of businesses 56 19
Other investing 25 4
Net cash used in investing activiti (280) —
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in short-term debt — net 138 4)
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) — —
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days — —
Purchases of treasury stock (1,227) (886)
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock pursoasibtk option and benefit
plans 357 309
Dividends paid to shareholders (672) (652)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — 101
Other — net (22) (22)
Net cash used in financing activiti (1,426 (1,154
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts (15) (32)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (461 (106
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,798 1,897
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 1,337 $ 1,791

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The interim consolidated financial statements au@udited but, in the opinion of management, refidichdjustments
necessary for a fair statement of the Company’salfated financial position, results of operatiansl cash flows for
the periods presented. These adjustments congistrofal, recurring items. The results of operatifamsany interim
period are not necessarily indicative of resultstiie full year. The interim consolidated financtdtements and notes
are presented as permitted by the requiremen®@darterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be reacbnjunction with the Company’s consolidated ficiah
statements and notes included in its 2015 AnnupbRen Form 10-K. As described in Note 14, effeziin the first
guarter of 2016, the Company made a product liperteng change involving two of its business segtsiehhe
Company has begun to report comparative resultsruthis new structure with the filing of this Quexty Report on
Form 10-Q. In the second quarter of 2016, the Compdans to update its business segment disclosuits2015
Annual Report on Form 10-K via a Current Reporfonm 8-K to reflect these changes.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies generally are considered the fonat currencies outside the United States. Asmeddiabilities for
operations in local-currency environments are teded at month-end exchange rates of the perioattegh. Income and
expense items are translated at month-end exchategeof each applicable month. Cumulative traimsiaadjustments
are recorded as a component of accumulated othegpretiensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity.

Although local currencies are typically consideasdhe functional currencies outside the UnitedeStainder
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 8B8@reign Currency Matterghe reporting currency of a foreign entity’s
parent is assumed to be that entity’s functionalemcy when the economic environment of a foreigtiteis highly
inflationary—generally when its cumulative inflatits approximately 100 percent or more for thedhrears that
precede the beginning of a reporting period. 3Maasbsidiary in Venezuela with operating incongresenting less
than 1.0 percent of 3M’s consolidated operatingine for 2015. Since January 1, 2010, the finamt&kements of the
Venezuelan subsidiary have been remeasured adufnittional currency were that of its parent.

The Venezuelan government sets official rates oharge and conditions precedent to purchase fooeigency at
these rates with local currency. Such rates andittons have been and continue to be subject togdhan

January 2014, the Venezuelan government annouhagthie National Center for Foreign Commerce (CEREYD had
assumed the role with respect to the continuatigdheexisting official exchange rate, significangixpanded the use of
a second currency auction exchange mechanism ¢hbe@omplementary System for Foreign Currency Aegquent
(or SICAD1), and issued exchange regulations irgigahe SICAD1 rate of exchange would be usegpfyments
related to international investments. In late Ma26t4, the Venezuelan government launched a thielgn exchange
mechanism, SICAD2, which it later replaced with e foreign currency exchange platform in Febr20¥5 called
the Marginal System of Foreign Currency (SIMADIhel'SIMADI rate was described as being derived fdaily
private bidders and buyers exchanging offers thnaughorized agents. This rate is approved andghdu by the
Venezuelan Central Bank. In March 2016, the Venlezugovernment effected a replacement of its peefil
CENCOEX rate with Tipo de Cambio Protegido (DIPR@®scribed as available largely for essential irtgpor
eliminated its SICAD exchange mechanism; and regldis SIMADI rate with Tipo de Cambio Complemerdar
(DICOM), published by the Venezuelan Central Bané described as fluctuating in rate based on sugpdydemand.

The financial statements of 3M’s Venezuelan subsjdivere remeasured utilizing the official CENCOX its
predecessor) rate into March 2014, the SICAD1 bbatginning in late March 2014, the SICAD2 rate bagig in
June 2014, and the DICOM rate (or its SIMADI presisor) beginning in February 2015. 3M’s uses cféhates were



based upon evaluation of a number of factors inotydout not limited to, the exchange rate the Canys Venezuelan
subsidiary may legally use to convert currencyeétansactions or pay dividends; the probabdityccessing and
obtaining currency by use of a particular rate echanism; and the Company’s intent and abilityse a particular
exchange mechanism. Other factors notwithstandamgeasurement impacts of the changes in use af thehange
rates did not have material impacts on 3M’s consiéd results of operations or financial condition.

The Company continues to monitor circumstancesivel#o its Venezuelan subsidiary. Changes in apple exchange
rates or exchange mechanisms may continue in theefurhese changes could impact the rate of exgghapplicable to
remeasure the Company’s net monetary assets ifiedjildenominated in Venezuelan Bolivars (VEF).cA#arch 31,
2016, the Company had a balance of net monetaegssdenominated in VEF of less than 500 million \é&ffe the
DIPRO and DICOM exchange rates were approximately&F and 260 VEF per U.S. dollar, respectively.

A need to deconsolidate the Company’s Venezuelbsidiary’'s operations may result from a lack ofleegeability of
VEF-denominated cash coupled with an acute degoadat the ability to make key operational decisaue to
government regulations in Venezuela. 3M monitocsdies such as its ability to access various exchangchanisms;
the impact of government regulations on the Comjsaalyility to manage its Venezuelan subsidiary’git structure,
purchasing, product pricing, and labor relatioms] the current political and economic situationhivitVenezuela.
Based upon such factors as of March 31, 2016, tiep@ny continues to consolidate its Venezuelanidialg. As of
March 31, 2016, the balance of intercompany retd#®sdue from this subsidiary and its equity batawere not
significant.

Earnings Per Share

The difference in the weighted average 3M sharéstanding for calculating basic and diluted eargsipgr share
attributable to 3M common shareholders is a rasfithe dilution associated with the Company’s stbeked
compensation plans. Certain options outstandingutietse stock-based compensation plans wereglatlad in the
computation of diluted earnings per share attribletdo 3M common shareholders because they woultiane had a
dilutive effect (9.0 million average options foetthree months ended March 31, 2016 and 3.5 mifli@rage options
for the three months ended March 31, 2015). Thepetations for basic and diluted earnings per sfai@w:

Earnings Per Share Computations

Three months ended

March 31,

(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 2016 2015
Numerator:

Net income attributable to 3M $ 1,275 % 1,199
Denominator:

Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanestanding — basic 607.4 636.2

Dilution associated with the Company’s stock-basatipensation plans 13.9 13.0

Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanestanding —dilutec 621.3 649.2
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slddelhs — basic $ 210 $ 1.88
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddehs — diluted $ 205 $ 1.85

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@q&ASB) issued ASU No. 2014-0Bevenue from Contracts
with Customersand in August 2015 issued ASU No. 2015-14, whaistended ASU No. 2014-09 as to effective date.
The ASU, as amended, provides a single comprehensbdel to be used in the accounting for revenisigrfrom
contracts with customers and supersedes most tuensmue recognition guidance, including indusipgcific
guidance. The standard’s stated core principleasdn entity should recognize revenue to depéetrdnsfer of



promised goods or services to customers in an antbanreflects the consideration to which thetgrgkpects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or servicesadhieve this core principle the ASU includes sions within a five
step model that includes identifying the contraithva customer, identifying the performance obligas in the contract,
determining the transaction price, allocating tla@saction price to the performance obligationd, r@eognizing
revenue when (or as) an entity satisfies a perfoo@abligation. The standard also specifies thewting for some
costs to obtain or fulfill a contract with a cusmand requires expanded disclosures about revecagnition. The
standard provides for either full retrospective@ém or a modified retrospective adoption by whiicls applied only

to the most current period presented. For 3M, tB& Aas amended, is effective January 1, 2018. Timepa@ny is
currently assessing this standard’s impact on 3idissolidated results of operations and financiad@mon.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015A8endments to the Consolidation Analysikich changes
guidance related to both the variable intereste(MIE) and voting interest entity (VOE) consoltda models. With
respect to the VIE model, the standard changesngmther things, the identification of variableeirdsts associated
with fees paid to a decision maker or service mtenithe VIE characteristics for a limited partoesimilar entity, and
the primary beneficiary determination. With resptecthe VOE model, the ASU eliminates the presuampthat a
general partner controls a limited partnershipimilar entity unless the presumption can otheriiseovercome. Under
the new guidance, a general partner would largetycansolidate a partnership or similar entity urttie VOE model.
The Company adopted this ASU effective Januaryp162Because 3M did not have significant involvetrveith
entities subject to consolidation considerationgdnted by the VIE model changes or with limitedipanrships
potentially impacted by the VOE model changesaitheption did not have a material impact on the Camygis
consolidated results of operations and financiabd@on.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-@stomer’s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Agement

which requires a customer to determine whetheoadctomputing arrangement contains a software dicelfi the
arrangement contains a software license, the cestamuld account for fees related to the softwaenke element in a
manner consistent with accounting for the acquisitf other acquired software licenses. If therageament does not
contain a software license, the customer would @atctor the arrangement as a service contract.rfangement would
contain a software license element if both (1)dhstomer has the contractual right to take possesdithe software at
any time during the hosting period without sigrafit penalty and (2) it is feasible for the custoioegither run the
software on its own hardware or contract with asottarty unrelated to the vendor to host the so#waM adopted
this ASU prospectively to arrangements entered mtanaterially modified beginning January 1, 20IBe adoption

did not have a material impact on 3M’s consolidaesiilts of operations and financial condition.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-implifying the Measurement of Inventomhich modifies existing
requirements regarding measuring inventory atahet of cost or market. Under existing standarus,nharket amount
requires consideration of replacement cost, ndizedde value (NRV), and NRV less an approximatetymal profit
margin. The new ASU replaces market with NRV, defims estimated selling prices in the ordinary s®of business,
less reasonably predictable costs of completiapatial and transportation. This eliminates the neeétermine and
consider replacement cost or NRV less an approeiyjabrmal profit margin when measuring inventdfgr 3M, this
standard is effective prospectively beginning Jaynda2017, with early adoption permitted. The Camypis currently
assessing this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidatedlte of operations and financial condition.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016R¥cognition and Measurement of Financial Assetskandncial
Liabilities, which revises the accounting related to (1) tassification and measurement of investments iritgqu
securities and (2) the presentation of certainvaiue changes for financial liabilities measuretha value. The ASU
also amends certain disclosure requirements asedaiath the fair value of financial instrument$i€Tnew guidance
requires the fair value measurement of investmiarggjuity securities and other ownership interastmn entity,
including investments in partnerships, unincorpeagbint ventures and limited liability companiesl{ectively, equity
securities) that do not result in consolidation anelnot accounted for under the equity methodti&ntwill need to
measure these investments and recognize chanfgsyalue in net income. Entities will no longes hble to recognize
unrealized holding gains and losses on equity #ezsithey classify under current guidance as atsel for sale in other
comprehensive income (OCI). They also will no lanige able to use the cost method of accountingdoity securities
that do not have readily determinable fair valuestead, for these types of equity investmentsdbatot otherwise
qualify for the net asset value practical expedientities will be permitted to elect a practicapiexception and



measure the investment at cost less impairmentgslosnus observable price changes (in orderlysiations). The
ASU also establishes an incremental recognitiondaslosure requirement related to the presentatidair value
changes of financial liabilities for which the famlue option (FVO) has been elected. Under thidance, an entity
would be required to separately present in OChpthréion of the total fair value change attributatoiénstrument-
specific credit risk as opposed to reflecting thére amount in earnings. For derivative liabikti#r which the FVO
has been elected, however, any changes in faieatributable to instrument-specific credit riskudd continue to be
presented in net income, which is consistent witnent guidance. For 3M, this standard is effeckigginning January
1, 2018 via a cumulative-effect adjustment to beigig retained earnings, except for guidance redativequity
securities without readily determinable fair valudsich is applied prospectively. The Company igently assessing
this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidated results p&mtions and financial condition.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016L@2asesreplacing existing lease accounting guidance. ridve
standard introduces a lessee model that would neutities to recognize assets and liabilitiesfiost leases, but
recognize expenses on their income statementsnanmer similar to current accounting. The ASU dustsmake
fundamental changes to existing lessor accouniogvever, it modifies what qualifies as a sales-tgpd direct
financing lease and related accounting and aligmsnaber of the underlying principles with thosdlef new revenue
standard, ASU No. 2014-09, such as evaluating haleatability should be considered and determinitigen profit can
be recognized. The guidance eliminates existingegtate-specific provisions and requires exparnpeditative and
guantitative disclosures. The standard requiresifireddetrospective transition by which it is apgaliat the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented in tlae geadoption. For 3M, the ASU is effective Jaryuhr2019. The
Company is currently assessing this standard’s é¢inpa 3M’s consolidated results of operations andrfcial
condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-06ntingent Put and Call Options in Debt Instrumefisis ASU
clarifies guidance used to determine if debt insints that contain contingent put or call optiomsld require
separation of the embedded put or call feature tlwerdebt instrument and trigger accounting forféadure as a
derivative with changes in fair value recorded tigtoincome. Under the new guidance, fewer put bbogéions
embedded in debt instruments would require dexigadccounting. For 3M, this ASU is effective Jaguhr2017. The
Company’s outstanding debt with embedded put pimvisdoes not require separate derivative accoginitier
existing guidance. As a result, 3M does not exfieéstASU to have a material impact on the Compangissolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-8implifying the Transition to the Equity MethodAaftounting
which eliminates the existing requirement to aghby equity method of accounting retrospectivelyigiag prior
periods as if the equity method had always beelieaf)pvhen an entity obtains significant influermeer a previously
held investment. The new guidance would requirantiestor to apply the equity method prospectiedyn the date
the investment qualifies for the equity method. irhestor would add the carrying value of the engsinvestment to
the cost of any additional investment to deterntirgeinitial cost basis of the equity method investim For 3M, this
ASU is effective January 1, 2017 on a prospectag&d) with early adoption permitted. 3M would apiiis guidance to
investments that transition to the equity methddrahe adoption date.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-®8ncipal versus Agent Considerations (Reportingdteie Gross
versus Net)which amends ASU No. 2014-0Revenue from Contracts with Customeéosclarify principal versus agent
guidance in situations in which a revenue traneadtivolves a third party in providing goods ongegs to a customer.
In such circumstances, an entity must determinettveinghe nature of its promise to the customen jgrovide the
underlying goods or services (i.e., the entityhis principal in the transaction) or to arrangetiar third party to provide
the underlying goods or services (i.e., the ergityre agent in the transaction). To determinentitere of its promise to
the customer, the entity must first identify eapbdfied good or service to be provided to the@ustr and then (before
transferring it) assess whether it controls eaetifipd good or service. The new ASU clarifies hanwentity should
identify the unit of accounting (the specified gamdservice) for the principal versus agent evammatand how it should
apply the control principle to certain types ofsamgements, such as service transactions, by eigairhat a principal
controls before the specified good or servicedngferred to the customer. This ASU has the safeetiee date and
transition requirements as ASU No. 2014-09, as aeeiby ASU No. 2015-14, which for 3M is effectivendiary 1,
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2018. The Company is currently assessing this ataglimpact on 3M’s consolidated results of opera and
financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 201640%rovements to Employee Share-Based Payment Aftgun
which modifies certain accounting aspects for stased payments to employees including, among etkarents, the
accounting for income taxes and forfeitures, ad agtlassifications in the statement of cash floWigh respect to
income taxes, under current guidance, when a dyased payment award such as a stock option oicteststock unit
(RSV) is granted to an employee, the fair valuthefaward is generally recognized over the vegigripd. However,
the related deduction from taxes payable is basgti@maward'’s intrinsic value at the time of exsedffor an option) or
on the fair value upon vesting of the award (fotJ8% which can be either greater (creating an extasbenefit) or
less (creating a tax deficiency) than the compémsabst recognized in the financial statementselSs tax benefits are
recognized in additional paid-in capital (APIC) kit equity, and tax deficiencies are similarly rgaized in APIC to
the extent there is a sufficient APIC amount (APKDI) related to previously recognized excess tmefits. Under the
new guidance, all excess tax benefits/deficiensi@sld be recognized as income tax benefit/expamsies statement of
income. The new ASU'’s income tax aspects also imghaccalculation of diluted earnings per sharexgluding
excess tax benefits/deficiencies from the caloofatif assumed proceeds available to repurchasesshader the
treasury stock method. Relative to forfeitures,ritbe/ standard allows an entity-wide accountingqgyodilection either
to continue to estimate the number of awards tlilhbe forfeited or to account for forfeitures dey occur. The new
guidance also impacts classifications within tlaeshent of cash flows by no longer requiring inidoof excess tax
benefits as both a hypothetical cash outflow witash flows from operating activities and hypottedtcash inflow
within cash flows from financing activities. Insteaxcess tax benefits would be classified in dpegactivities in the
same manner as other cash flows related to incarest Additionally, the new ASU requires cash paysi¢o tax
authorities when an employer uses a net-settlefaahire to withhold shares to meet statutory takhalding
provisions to be presented as financing activitiyni@ating previous diversity in practice). For 3ihjs standard is
required effective January 1, 2017, with early aawoppermitted. The Company early adopted ASU Nid.&209 as of
January 1, 2016. Prospectively beginning Janua®p16, excess tax benefits/deficiencies have beftacted as income
tax benefit/expense in the statement of incomeltiegun a $81 million tax benefit in the quarterdeed March 31, 2016
(3M typically experiences the largest volume otktoption exercises and RSU vestings in the fiusirter of its fiscal
year). The extent of excess tax benefits/deficend@ subject to variation in 3M stock price amaitig/extent of RSU
vestings and employee stock option exercises. 3éption of this ASU also resulted in associatatkss tax benefits
being classified as operating activity in the san@ner as other cash flows related to income tisxée statement of
cash flows prospectively beginning January 1, 2@k&ed on the adoption methodology applied, thersint of cash
flows classification of prior periods has not begljusted. In addition, 3M did not change its actimgnprinciples
relative to elements of this standard and contintseexisting practice of estimating the numbeawfrds that will be
forfeited.

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-1dentifying Performance Obligations and Licensimgnich amends
ASU No. 2014-09Revenue from Contracts with Customénsterms of identifying performance obligationsa
revenue arrangement, the amendments clarify hoitvesnivould determine whether promised goods orises are
separately identifiable from other promises in atract and, therefore, would be accounted for sgplyr The guidance
would also allow entities to disregard goods ovises that are immaterial in the context of a cacttand provides an
accounting policy election to account for shippargl handling activities as fulfillment costs rattiean as additional
promised services. With regard to the licensing,amendments clarify how an entity would evaluh&ertature of its
promise in granting a license of intellectual pndpewhich determines whether the entity recognies&nue over time
or at a point in time. The standard also clariiegain other aspects relative to licensing. TH&J/has the same
effective date and transition requirements as ASU2014-09, as amended by ASU No. 2015-14, whicl3kb is
effective January 1, 2018. The Company is curreagbessing this standard’s impact on 3M’s cons®itieesults of
operations and financial condition.
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NOTE 2. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions:

3M makes acquisitions of certain businesses from tio time that are aligned with its strategic mht&ith respect to,
among other factors, growth markets and adjacemymt lines or technologies.

There were no material business combinations tbaed during the three months ended March 31, 28dfiistments
in the first quarter of 2016 to the preliminary glase price allocations of other acquisitions witthie allocation period
were not material. The allocation of purchase pridated to the acquisition of Capital Safety Gr@A.R.L. in August
2015 is considered preliminary, primarily with respto certain tax-related assets and liabilitéds.expects to finalize
the allocation of purchase price within the oneryaaasurement-period following this acquisition.

Divestitures:

3M may divest certain businesses from time to tirased upon review of the Company’s portfolio coasity, among
other items, factors relative to the extent oftey&t and technological alignment and optimizatibcapital

deployment, in addition to considering if sellitptbusinesses results in the greatest value andatithe Company and
for shareholders.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M (Safety and GragHBusiness) completed the sale of the remaindirecdssets of 3M’s
library systems business to One Equity Partnerst&lafdvisors L.P. (OEP). 3M had previously sole thorth
American business and the majority of the businesside of North America to OEP in the fourth qaadf 2015. The
library systems business delivers circulation managnt solutions to library customers with on-prentiardware and
software, maintenance and service, and an emectpng-based digital lending platform.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M (Industrial Busiisg sold to Innovative Chemical Products Grouprf@io company
of Audax Private Equity, the assets of 3M’s preigew polyurethane foam adhesives business (fornkadyn as
Polyfoam). This business is a provider of pressgrigolyurethane foam adhesive formulations andegsysinto the
residential roofing, commercial roofing and insidatand industrial foam segments in the UnitedeStatith annual
sales of approximately $20 million.

The Company recorded a pre-tax gain of $40 milifothe first quarter of 2016 as a result of thesalf these
businesses (recorded in selling, general and adtrative expenses). The aggregate operating incnmese
businesses included in the Company’s operatindtsstu the periods presented and the amounts gdmaasets and
liabilities of any associated disposal groups di&sbas held-for-sale as of the respective balame®et dates presented
were not material.

Refer to Note 2 in 3M’s 2015 Annual Report on FAdaK for more information on 3M’s acquisitions adigestitures.
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NOTE 3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

There were no material acquisitions that closeéhduthe first three months of 2016. The amounthe“Translation
and other” column in the following table primariiglate to changes in foreign currency exchange ratee goodwill
balances by business segment as of December 33 ah@IMarch 31, 2016, follow:

Goodwill

December 31, 2015 Acquisition Translation March 31, 201
(Millions) Balance activity and other Balance
Industrial $ 2573 $ — $ 51 $ 2,624
Safety and Graphics 3,342 3 32 3,377
Health Care 1,624 — 20 1,644
Electronics and Energy 1,510 — 14 1,524
Consumer 200 — 6 206
Total Company $ 9,249 $ 3 $ 123 % 9,375

Accounting standards require that goodwill be g$te impairment annually and between annual t@stertain
circumstances such as a change in reporting untteedesting of recoverability of a significansasgroup within a
reporting unit. At 3M, reporting units generallyroespond to a division.

As described in Note 14, effective in the first gaaof 2016, the Company changed its business eegraporting in its
continuing effort to improve the alignment of itsdinesses around markets and customers. For adygirchanges that
resulted in reporting unit changes, the Companyiegphe relative fair value method to determine itthpact on
goodwill of the associated reporting units. Durthg first quarter of 2016, the Company completed#isessment of
any potential goodwill impairment for reporting tsmimpacted by this new structure and determinatirth impairment
existed.

Acquired Intangible Assets

The carrying amount and accumulated amortizaticecqtiired finite-lived intangible assets, in additio the balance
of non-amortizable intangible assets, as of Mafh?®16, and December 31, 2015, follow:

March 31, December 31,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Customer related intangible assets $ 1,985 $ 1,973
Patents 610 616
Other technology-based intangible assets 526 525
Definite-lived tradenames 423 421
Other amortizable intangible assets 218 216
Total gross carrying amount $ 3,762 $ 3,751
Accumulated amortization — customer related (706) (668)
Accumulated amortization — patents (484 (481
Accumulated amortization — other technology based (267) (252)
Accumulated amortization — definite-lived tradename (222, (215
Accumulated amortization — other (172) (169)
Total accumulated amortization $ (1,851 $ (1,785

Total finite-lived intangible assets — net $ 1911 % 1,966
Non-amortizable intangible assets (primarily tradensime 640 635

Total intangible assets — net $ 2551 $ 2,601
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Certain tradenames acquired by 3M are not amorbeeduse they have been in existence for over &S ykave a
history of leading-market share positions, haventse® are intended to be continuously renewedttendssociated
products of which are expected to generate casisffor 3M for an indefinite period of time.

Amortization expense for acquired intangible astmtshe three-month periods ended March 31, 20152015
follows:

Three months ended
March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015

Amortization expense $ 66 $ 53

Expected amortization expense for acquired amdntgzitangible assets recorded as of March 31,2016

Remainder
of After
(Millions) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 202
Amortization expense $ 188 $ 227 $ 205 $ 193 $ 183 $ 167 $ 748

The preceding expected amortization expense istimate. Actual amounts of amortization expense ditigr from
estimated amounts due to additional intangibletassguisitions, changes in foreign currency excleanages,
impairment of intangible assets, accelerated amaiitin of intangible assets and other events. 3p&eses the costs
incurred to renew or extend the term of intangddeets.

NOTE 4. Restructuring Actions

During the fourth quarter of 2015, management apg@nd committed to undertake certain restruoguaictions
primarily focused on structural overhead, largelytie U.S. and slower-growing markets, with paticemphasis on
Europe, Middle East, and Africa (EMEA) and Latin Arita. This impacted approximately 1,700 positimosldwide
and resulted in a fourth-quarter 2015 pre-tax ohaifgb114 million.

Components of these restructuring actions, inclydiash and non-cash impacts, follow:

Employee- Asset-
(Millions) Related Related Total
Expense incurred $ 98 $ 16 $ 114
Non-cash changes (8) (16) (24)
Cash payments (27, — (27,
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Dece®bg2015 $ 63 $ —  $ 63
Cash payments (25 — (25
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Mar;h2816 $ 38 $ — $ 38

Non-cash changes include certain pension settlenagmt special termination benefits recorded inusxtpension and
postretirement benefits and accelerated depreniatisulting from the cessation of use of certaiglived assets.
Remaining activities related to the restructuring expected to be completed in 2016.
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NOTE 5. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Iname Information
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Three months ended March 31, 2016

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 11747 $ 4800 $ 36575 $ (23,308 $ (6,359 $ 39
Net incom 1,278 1,275 3
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 138 139 Q)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsstment 69 69 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo (110 (110) —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 97
Dividends declared (672 (672)
Stock-based compensation 125 125
Reacquired stock (1,163 (2,163)
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 362 (393 755
Balance at March 31, 2016 $ 11,774 $ 4925 $ 36,785 $ (23,716) $ (6,261) $ 41

Three months ended March 31, 2015

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 13,142 $ 4,388 $ 34317 $ (19,307 $ (6,289 $ 33
Net incom: 1,201 1,199 2
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (193 (193 —
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsstment 91 91 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaiss)jo 70 70 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (32)
Dividends declared 3) 3)
Stock-based compensation, net of tax impacts 228 228
Reacquired stock (896 (896)
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 312 (433 745
Balance at March 31, 2015 $ 13952 $ 4616 $ 35080 $ (19,458) $ 6,321) $ 35

In December 2014, 3M’s Board of Directors declaadist-quarter 2015 dividend of $1.025 per shaed in
March 2015). This reduced 3M's stockholder equityl ancreased other current liabilities as of Decengd, 2014, by
approximately $0.6 billion.
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Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incomé_¢ss) Attributable to 3M by Component

Three months ended March 31, 2016

Total
DefinedBenefit Debtand  Cash Flow  Accumulated
Pension and Equity Hedging Other
Cumulative  Postretirement ~ Securities, Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized  Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2015, net of tax: $ (1,679 $ (4,804 $ — $ 124 $ (6,359
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 60 — — (121 (61
Amounts reclassified out — 103 — (52) 51
Total other comprehensive income (loss), befor 60 103 — (173 (20;
Tax effect 79 (34) — 63 108
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net ol 139 69 — (110 98
Balance at March 31, 2016, net of tax: $ (1540) $ (4735 % — 3 14 $ (6,261)
Three months ended March 31, 2015
Total
DefinedBenefit  Debt and Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Equity Hedging Other
Cumulative  Postretirement  Securities, Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized  Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2014, net of tax: $ (1,095 $ (5293 % — 3 99 $ (6,289
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (44) 24 — 136 116
Amounts reclassified out — 124 — (27) 97
Total other comprehensive income (loss), befor (44) 148 — 109 213
Tax effect (149) (57) — (39) (245)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of (193 91 — 70 (32)
Balance at March 31, 2015, net of tax: $ (1,283 $ (5,202) $ — $ 169 $ (6,321)

Income taxes are not provided for foreign transhatielating to permanent investments in internaicubsidiaries, but
tax effects within cumulative translation does utle# impacts from items such as net investment hgdgsactions.
Reclassification adjustments are made to avoid ldozdunting in comprehensive income items thataése recorded as

part of net income.
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Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehasive Income Attributable to 3M

Details about Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income Components

Amount Reclassified from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Three months ended March 31,

Location on Income

(Millions) 2016 2015 Statement
Gains (losses) associated with, defined benefisiparand
postretirement plans amortization
Transition asset $ — % — See Note 9
Prior service benefit 23 18 See Note 9
Net actuarial loss (126 (159 See Note 9
Curtailments/Settlements — 17 See Note 9
Total before tax (203 124
Tax effect 34 46  Provision for income taxes
Net of tay $ 69 $ (78
Debt and equity security gains (losses)
Selling, general and
Sales or impairments of securities $ —  $ — administrative expenses
Total before tax — —
Tax effect — — Provision for income taxes
Net of ta $ — % —
Cash flow hedging instruments gains (losses)
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 53 % 30 Cost of sales
Commodity price swap contracts — (2) Cost of sales
Interest rate swap contracts (1) (1) Interest expense
Total before tax 52 27
Tax effect (18) (10, Provision for income taxes
Net of tay $ 34 3 17
Total reclassifications for the period, net of tax $ (35 $ (61
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NOTE 6. Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction, and various states and forgigisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.® federal, state and local, or non-U.S. inctamxeexaminations
by tax authorities for years before 2005.

The IRS has completed its field examination of@menpany’s U.S. federal income tax returns for tearg 2005
through 2014. The Company protested certain IR8ipos within these tax years and entered intcatthainistrative
appeals process with the IRS. In December 201X tmpany received a statutory notice of deficiefarythe 2006
year. The Company filed a petition in Tax Courtha first quarter of 2013 relating to the 2006 yaar.

Currently, the Company is under examination bylR® for its U.S. federal income tax returns for ylears 2015 and
2016. It is anticipated that the IRS will complégexamination of the Company for 2015 by the ehthe first quarter
of 2017 and for 2016 by the end of the first quanfe2018. As of March 31, 2016, the IRS has noppsed any
significant adjustments to the Company’s tax posgifor which the Company is not adequately reskrve

Payments relating to other proposed assessmesitsgaiiom the 2005 through 2016 examinations maybeanade
until a final agreement is reached between the Gappnd the IRS on such assessments or upon adswution
resulting from the administrative appeals procegadicial action. In addition to the U.S. fedeeaxtamination, there is
also audit activity in several U.S. state and fgmgurisdictions.

3M anticipates changes to the Company’s uncersipositions due to the closing and resolutionuafigissues for
various audit years mentioned above and closustatiites. The Company is not currently able toaeaisly estimate
the amount by which the liability for unrecogniziast benefits will increase or decrease during #w 62 months as a
result of the ongoing income tax authority examora. The total amounts of unrecognized tax ben#it, if
recognized, would affect the effective tax rat@Bblarch 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are $3M®mand $369
million, respectively.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits in tax rgpeThe
Company recognized in the consolidated statemeinicofne on a gross basis approximately $4 millibbhenefit and

$2 million of expense for the three months endedd&1, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively. Ardh 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015, accrued interest and pemaitithe consolidated balance sheet on a grossweae $39

million and $45 million, respectively. Includedtimese interest and penalty amounts are interegpamaties related to
tax positions for which the ultimate deductibilisyhighly certain but for which there is uncertgiabout the timing of
such deductibility. Because of the impact of defértax accounting, other than interest and pesaltie disallowance
of the shorter deductibility period would not aff¢ice annual effective tax rate but would accekethé payment of cash
to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The effective tax rate for the first quarter of B0das 26.8 percent, compared to 29.5 percent ifirsteuarter of 2015,
a decrease of 2.7 percentage points. Primary fathtat decreased the Company’s effective tax nate @ombined basis
by 5.3 percentage points for the first three mowofta016 when compared to the same period for 28di6ded the
recognition of excess tax benefits beginning in@6dated to employee share-based payments (reg@iltim the
adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, as discussed in Nytehe reinstatement of the R&D tax credit, anceotkems. This
decrease was partially offset by a 2.6 percentag# pear-on-year increase, which included intéomatl taxes that
were impacted by changes to both the geographioifrincome before taxes and additional tax expealsged to

global cash optimization actions, plus remeasureésngfii3M’s uncertain tax positions.

The provision for income taxes is determined usirggasset and liability approach. Under this apghnpdeferred
income taxes represent the expected future taxequiesices of temporary differences between theingramounts and
tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Compangnds a valuation allowance to reduce its defetagdissets when
uncertainty regarding their realizability exits. 88March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Cognpad valuation
allowances of $32 million and $31 million on itsfeleed tax assets, respectively.
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NOTE 7. Marketable Securities

The Company invests in asset-backed securitiesficates of deposit/time deposits, commercial papad other
securities. The following is a summary of amouetorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for nadrleesecurities
(current and non-current).

March 31, December 31,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Foreign government agency securities $ 10 $ 10
Corporate debt securities 10 10
Commercial paper 36 12
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 46 26
U.S. municipal securities 3 3
Asset-backed securities:

Automobile loan related 44 26

Credit card related 19 10

Equipment lease related 1 2

Other 7 19
Asset-backed securities total 71 57
Current marketable securities $ 176 $ 118
U.S. municipal securities $ 15 $ 9
Non-current marketable securities $ 15 $ 9
Total marketable securities $ 191 $ 127

Classification of marketable securities as curognton-current is based on the nature of the siesiand availability
for use in current operations. At March 31, 2016 Brecember 31, 2015, gross unrealized gains ataifses (pre-tax)
were not material. Refer to Note 5 for a table firawvides the net realized gains (losses) relatesdies or impairments
of debt and equity securities, which includes miatile securities. The gross amounts of the reatiadéus or losses
were not material. Cost of securities sold usdfitkein, first out (FIFO) method. Since these n&dble securities are
classified as available-for-sale securities, changdair value will flow through other comprehersincome, with
amounts reclassified out of other comprehensiverireinto earnings upon sale or “other-than-tempgdiarpairment.

3M reviews impairments associated with its markietabcurities in accordance with the measuremedague
provided by ASC 320nvestments-Debt and Equity Securitieben determining the classification of the imp&nt as
“temporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A temporamgpairment charge results in an unrealized lossgoegcorded in
the other comprehensive income component of shitetsd equity. Such an unrealized loss does naigedhet income
attributable to 3M for the applicable accountingipe because the loss is not viewed as other-teenporary. The
factors evaluated to differentiate between temposad other-than-temporary include the projectédréucash flows,
credit ratings actions, and assessment of thetayadlity of the underlying collateral, as well@tber factors.
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The balances at March 31, 2016 for marketable &&suby contractual maturity are shown below. Attwnaturities
may differ from contractual maturities becauseidiseiers of the securities may have the right tpgyebligations
without prepayment penalties.

(Millions) March 31, 2016

Due in one year or less $ 95
Due after one year through five years 95
Due after five years through ten years 1
Due after ten years —
Total marketable securities $ 191

3M has a diversified marketable securities portfolf $191 million as of March 31, 2016. Within thisrtfolio, asset-
backed securities primarily include interests itoawbile loans, credit cards and equipment le&ds investment
policy allows investments in asset-backed secaritith minimum credit ratings of Aa2 by Moody's kstors Service
or AA by Standard & Poor’s or Fitch Ratings or DBRSset-backed securities must be rated by at teasdf the
aforementioned rating agencies, one of which mestibody’s Investors Service or Standard & PoorsMarch 31,
2016, all asset-backed security investments wecetinpliance with this policy. Approximately 81.1rpent of all asset-
backed security investments were rated AAA or Aby+Standard & Poor’s and/or Aaa or P-1 by Moodwp'gestors
Service and/or AAA or F1+ by Fitch Ratings. Inteénege risk and credit risk related to the undedycollateral may
impact the value of investments in asset-backedrgis, while factors such as general conditionthie overall credit
market and the nature of the underlying collateral affect the liquidity of investments in assetfed securities. 3M
does not currently expect risk related to its hugdin asset-backed securities to materially imgtadtnancial condition
or liquidity.

NOTE 8. Long-Term Debt and Short-Term Borrowings

In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exi$hg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilityxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 billion five-year revolving creféitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreent includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lender’s discretion), lging the total
facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving credicility is undrawn at March 31, 2016. Under the7&3billion credit
agreement, the Company is required to maintaiBBE DA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlgquarter at not
less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as defingde agreement) as the ratio of consolidated EBAT DA for the four
consecutive quarters then ended to a total intesgsnse on all funded debt for the same perioddatch 31, 2016,
this ratio was approximately 51 to 1. Debt covegaltt not restrict the payment of dividends.
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NOTE 9. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Net periodic benefit cost is recorded in cost ¢désaselling, general and administrative expereed,research,
development and related expenses. Components périetlic benefit cost and other supplemental imfation for the
three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 follow:

Benefit Plan Information

Three months ended March 31,
Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 656 $ 73 $ 33 $42 $ 13 $ 21
Interest cost 143 164 43 55 20 25
Expected return on plan assets (260 (267, (78 (81, (23} (22
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation — — — — — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) 6) (6) 3 4 (14 (8)
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 88 102 22 38 16 19
Net periodic benefit cost (benef $ 30 $ 66 $ 17 $ 50 $ 12 $ 35
Settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other — — — (17) — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) after settletsenurtailments, speci
termination benefits and other $ 30 $ 66 $ 17 $ 33 $ 12 $ 35

For the three months ended March 31, 2016, cortioibsi totaling $55 million were made to the Company.S. and
international pension plans and $1 million to itsetirement plans. For total year 2016, the Camgepects to
contribute between approximately $200 million t@@4million of cash to its global defined benefing®n and
postretirement plans. The Company does not haggquared minimum cash pension contribution obligafior its U.S.
plans in 2016. Future contributions will dependnaarket conditions, interest rates and other facfivBs annual
measurement date for pension and postretiremeeitsassd liabilities is December 31 each year, whidiso the date
used for the related annual measurement assumptions

Beginning in 2016, 3M changed the method usedtimate the service and interest cost componertiseonet periodic
pension and other postretirement benefit costs.nEmemethod measures service cost and interessepatately using
the spot yield curve approach applied to each spmeding obligation. Service costs are determirasgth on duration-
specific spot rates applied to the service codt lasvs. The interest cost calculation is deterrdibg applying
duration-specific spot rates to the year-by-yeajquted benefit payments. The spot yield curve @ggr does not affect
the measurement of the total benefit obligationthashange in service and interest costs offsetaractuarial gains
and losses recorded in other comprehensive incbheCompany changed to the new method to providera precise
measure of service and interest costs by improtriagorrelation between the projected benefit iasts and the
discrete spot yield curve rates. The Company adeduior this change as a change in estimate pragplcbeginning
in the first quarter of 2016. As a result of theugshe to the spot yield curve approach, 2016 ardefaied benefit
pension and postretirement net periodic benefit lsas decreased approximately $180 million.

Using this methodology, the Company determinedadistrates for its plans as follows:

International
Pension u.s.
U.S. Qualified (weighted Postretirement
Pension average) Medical

December 31, 2015 Liability:

Benefit obligation 4.47% 3.12% 4.32%
2016 Net Periodic Benefit Cost Components:

Service cost 4.72% 2.84% 4.60%

Interest cost 3.77% 2.72% 3.44%
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The Company also sponsors employee savings plates @ection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Codeélismissed in
Note 11 in 3M’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-KgBwming on January 1, 2016, for U.S. employeesCbmpany
reduced its match on employee 401(k) contributiéis.eligible employees hired prior to JanuarydQ2 employee
401(k) contributions of up to 5% of eligible compation are matched in cash at rates of 45% or @@¥ending on the
plan in which the employee participates. Employae=d on or after January 1, 2009, receive a casichmof 100% for
employee 401(k) contributions of up to 5% of ellgibompensation and also continue to receive ariampretirement
income account cash contribution of 3% of the pgdint’s total eligible compensation.

In August 2015, 3M modified the 3M Retiree Welf&@enefit Plan postretirement medical benefit redgehe future
benefit for participants not retired as of Janugrg016. Current retirees and employees who retiredr before
January 1, 2016, were not impacted by these chaimpesRetiree Medical Savings Account (RMSA) idarager
credited with interest, and the indexation on kbthRMSA and the Medicare Health Reimbursementiyeanent was
reduced from 3 percent to 1.5 percent per yeattlfase employees who are eligible for these acspuhtso effective
January 1, 2016, 3M no longer offered 3M RetirealttieCare Accounts to new hires. Due to these afmtite plan
was re-measured in the third quarter of 2015, tieguin a decrease to the projected benefit ohibgatability of
approximately $233 million, and a related incresshareholders’ equity, specifically accumulatédteo
comprehensive income.

In March 2015, 3M Japan modified the Japan Limibedined Benefit Corporate Pension Plan (DBCPP).i3@gg

July 1, 2015, eligible employees receive a compganyided contribution match of 6.12% of their diilgi salary to their
defined contribution plan. Employees no longer eatditional service towards their defined benedihgion plans after
July 1, 2015, except for eligible salaries abowedtatutory defined contribution limits. As a résflthis plan
modification, the Company re-measured the DBCPRghwtesulted in a $17 million pre-tax curtailmeuirgfor the
three months ended March 31, 2015.

3M was informed during the first quarter of 200®attthe general partners of WG Trading Companwhith 3M’s
benefit plans hold limited partnership interests, the subject of a criminal investigation as vaslicivil proceedings by
the SEC and CFTC (Commodity Futures Trading Comomsin March 2011, over the objections of 3M aixdother
limited partners of WG Trading Company, the distdourt judge ruled in favor of the court appointedeiver’s
proposed distribution plan (and in April 2013, theited States Court of Appeals for the Second @irmftirmed the
district court’s ruling). The benefit plan trusteeldings of WG Trading Company interests were adpliso reflect the
decreased estimated fair market value, inclusivestimated insurance proceeds, as of the annuauresaent dates.
The Company has insurance that it believes, basadhat is currently known, will result in the prdida recovery of a
portion of the decrease in original asset valughénfirst quarter of 2014, 3M and certain 3M bénghns filed a
lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Distriof Minnesota against five insurers seeking insceatoverage for the
WG Trading Company claim. In September 2015, thetawled in favor of the defendant insurance coniggon a
motion for summary judgment and dismissed the l@wsuOctober 2015, 3M and the 3M benefit platedia notice of
appeal to the United States Court of Appeals ferlghth Circuit. As of the 2015 measurement dhiese holdings
represented less than one half of one percent ¢ &M value of total plan assets. 3M currentljidees that the
resolution of these events will not have a matexihlerse effect on the consolidated financial pmsivf the Company.
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NOTE 10. Derivatives

The Company uses interest rate swaps, currencysswammodity price swaps, and forward and optiartre@ts to
manage risks generally associated with foreign &amgh rate, interest rate and commodity price fatibns. The
information that follows explains the various typdslerivatives and financial instruments used bl Bow and why
3M uses such instruments, how such instrumentaareunted for, and how such instruments impact Jiiancial
position and performance.

Additional information with respect to the impaots other comprehensive income of nonderivative megdgnd
derivative instruments is included in Note 5. Adxtial information with respect to the fair valuedarivative
instruments is included in Note 11. Referencesfarmation regarding derivatives and/or hedgingrimaents
associated with the Company’s long-term debt a&e alade in Note 10 in 3M’s 2015 Annual Report omir&0-K.
Types of Derivatives/Hedging Instruments and Inclugn Income/Other Comprehensive Income

Cash Flow Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as cash flow hedges, the effective portéthe gain or loss
on the derivative is reported as a component afratbmprehensive income and reclassified into agsiin the same
period during which the hedged transaction affearsiings. Gains and losses on the derivative repiieg either hedge
ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded frmnassessment of effectiveness are recognizedrnent@arnings.

Cash Flow Hedging - Foreign Currency Forward andtiop Contracts:The Company enters into foreign exchange
forward and option contracts to hedge against tleeteof exchange rate fluctuations on cash flo@saiminated in
foreign currencies. These transactions are desdras cash flow hedges. The settlement or extensithese
derivatives will result in reclassifications (fraeecumulated other comprehensive income) to earminte period
during which the hedged transactions affect eamifilyl may dedesignate these cash flow hedge ne#tips in
advance of the occurrence of the forecasted tréinsad he portion of gains or losses on the deneainstrument
previously accumulated in other comprehensive ireéon dedesignated hedges remains in accumulated ot
comprehensive income until the forecasted transaciccurs. Changes in the value of derivative imsénts after
dedesignation are recorded in earnings and arededlin the Derivatives Not Designated as Hedgisgrliments
section below. Beginning in the second quarterddf4 3M began extending the maximum length of tawer which it
hedges its exposure to the variability in futurshcfiows of the forecasted transactions from aiptessterm of 12
months to a longer term of 24 months, with certairrencies being extended further to 36 monthsistain the first
quarter of 2015.

Cash Flow Hedging - Commaodity Price Managemé@ihie Company manages commodity price risks thraagjotiated
supply contracts, price protection agreements andldrd contracts. 3M discontinued the use of conityqatice swaps
as cash flow hedges of forecasted commodity trdiasecin the first quarter of 2015. The Companydusemmodity
price swaps as cash flow hedges of forecasted calityrtoansactions to manage price volatility. Te&ated mark-to-
market gain or loss on qualifying hedges was inetlish other comprehensive income to the extentefie, and
reclassified into cost of sales in the period dymvhich the hedged transaction affected earnings.

Cash Flow Hedging — Interest Rate Contradtee Company may use forward starting interestcatgracts to hedge
exposure to variability in cash flows from fore@abstiebt issuances. The amortization of gains asskfoon forward
starting interest rate swaps is included in théetabelow as part of the gain/(loss) recognizeiddnme on the effective
portion of derivatives as a result of reclassifimatfrom accumulated other comprehensive incomelitiahal
information regarding previously issued and terri@danterest rate contracts can be found in Note BM's 2015
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In February 2016, the Company entered into a falvesarting interest rate swap expiring in Decen#td6 with a

notional amount of $100 million as a hedge agantstest rate volatility associated with a foreedsssuance of fixed
rate debt.
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As of March 31, 2016, the Company had a balan&i4fmillion associated with the after-tax net atied gain
associated with cash flow hedging instruments @ain accumulated other comprehensive income.imblisdes a
remaining balance of $5 million (after tax losdpated to the forward starting interest rate swaphich will be
amortized over the respective lives of the debseBleon exchange rates as of March 31, 2016, 3Mcexpereclassify
approximately $38 million of the after-tax net ualieed foreign exchange cash flow hedging gaireaimings over the
remainder of 2016, approximately $9 million of tiféer-tax net unrealized foreign exchange cash fledging losses
to earnings in 2017, and approximately $15 milldéthe after-tax net unrealized foreign exchangehdbow hedging
losses to earnings after 2017 (with the impactedffy earnings/losses from underlying hedged iteBid)expects to
reclassify approximately $36 million of the aftex<tnet unrealized foreign exchange cash flow heggains to
earnings over the next 12 months.

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathbases
related to derivative instruments designated als flaw hedges are provided in the following table.

Three months ended March 31, 2016

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Pretax Gain (Loss) Income on Effective Portion of Ineffective Portim of Gain
Recognized in Other Derivative as a Result of (Loss) on Derivative ah
Comprehensive Reclassification from Amount Exclded from
Income on Effective Accumulated Other Effectiveness Testing
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Pdon of Derivative Comprehensive Income Recognizeit Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (120; Cost of sales $ 53 Cost of sales $ =
Interest rate swap contracts (1) Interest expense (1) Interest expense —
Total $ 121 $ 52 $ —
Three months ended March 31, 2015
Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in
Pretax Gain (Loss) Income on Effective Portion of Ineffective Portim of Gain
Recognized in Other Derivative as a Result of (Loss) on Derivative ah
Comprehensive Reclassification from Amount Exclded from
Income on Effective Accumulated Other Effectiveness Testing
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Pdion of Derivative Comprehensive Income Recognizeit Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 136 Cost of sales $ 30 Cost of sales $ =
Commodity price swap contracts —  Cost of sales (2) Cost of sales —
Interest rate swap contracts — Interest expens (1) Interest expens —
Total $ 136 $ 27 $ —

Fair Value Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as fair value hedges, the gain or losshenderivatives as well
as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged ittribatable to the hedged risk are recognized mesu earnings.

Fair Value Hedging - Interest Rate Swap$ie Company manages interest expense using afrfiked and floating

rate debt. To help manage borrowing costs, the @ospnmay enter into interest rate swaps. Under thes@igements,
the Company agrees to exchange, at specified aitgrhe difference between fixed and floating ies¢ amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notipmatipal amount. The mark-to-market of these Yaiue hedges is
recorded as gains or losses in interest expenses afittet by the gain or loss of the underlyingptdastrument, which
also is recorded in interest expense. These faievzedges are highly effective and, thus, thermisnpact on earnings
due to hedge ineffectiveness. Additional informatiegarding designated interest rate swaps caourelfin Note 12 in
3M’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The location in the consolidated statements ofime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toatdiegvinstruments
designated as fair value hedges and similar infaomaelative to the hedged items are as follows:
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Three months ended March 31, 2016

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Reognized in Income Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 29 Interest expens $ (29
Total $ 29 $ (29)
Three months ended March 31, 2015
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Reognized in Income Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 6 Interest expens $ (6)
Total $ 6 $ (6)

Net Investment Hedges:

The Company may use non-derivative (foreign culyatenominated debt) and derivative (foreign exclediogward
contracts) instruments to hedge portions of the @amg’s investment in foreign subsidiaries and marfageign
exchange risk. For instruments that are desigratedjualify as hedges of net investments in forejggrations and
that meet the effectiveness requirements, theaias@r losses attributable to changes in spotamgdhrates are
recorded in cumulative translation within other gwehensive income. The remainder of the changalirevof such
instruments is recorded in earnings. Recognitiomaimings of amounts previously recorded in cunugdtanslation is
limited to circumstances such as complete or sabatly complete liquidation of the net investmémthe hedged
foreign operation. To the extent foreign currenepaiminated debt is not designated in or is dedaségrfrom a net
investment hedge relationship, changes in valubaifportion of foreign currency denominated dele tb exchange
rate changes are recorded in earnings throughriedinrity date.

3M'’s use of foreign exchange forward contracts giesiied in hedges of the Company’s net investmefuraign
subsidiaries can vary by time period depending bamwforeign currency denominated debt balanceguiatsd in such
relationships are dedesignated, matured, or aré/ngsued and designated. Additionally, variati@moccur in
connection with the extent of the Company’s desfoedign exchange risk coverage.

At March 31, 2016, the total notional amount offgn exchange forward contracts designated innvestment hedges
was approximately 974 million Euros and approxiya®28 billion South Korean Won, along with a pijal amount
of long-term debt instruments designated in netétment hedges totaling 3.6 billion Euros. The migtdates of these
derivative and nonderivative instruments designatetkt investment hedges range from 2016 to 2030.

The location in the consolidated statements ofime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathkases
related to derivative and nonderivative instrumelgsignated as net investment hedges are as folldwse were no
reclassifications of the effective portion of netéstment hedges out of accumulated other compseleeimcome into
income for the periods presented in the table below
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Three months ended March 31, 2016

Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Innestment Hedging

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (144 N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts (43) Cost of sales (2)
Total $ (187 $ (2)

Three months ended March 31, 2015

Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Investment Hedging

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ 240 N/A $ —
Foreign currency forward contracts 15Tost of sales —
Total $ 397 $ —

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

3M enters into foreign exchange forward contralets ire not designated in hedge relationshipsfsenfin part, the
impacts of certain intercompany transactions arfdrther mitigate short-term currency impacts. didiéion, the
Company enters into commodity price swaps to affsgbart, fluctuations in costs associated with tise of certain
precious metals. These derivative instruments arel@signated in hedging relationships; thereffaie value gains and
losses on these contracts are recorded in earfihgsCompany does not hold or issue derivativenfired instruments

for trading purposes.

The location in the consolidated statements ofriime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toafi@gvinstruments

not designated as hedging instruments are as fellow

Three months ended March 31, 2016
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in

Derivatives Not Designhated as Hedging Instruments Income

(Millions) Location Amount

Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ )

Foreign currency forward contracts Interest expense (7)
Total $ (12

Three months ended March 31, 2015
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Income

(Millions) Location Amount

Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ 4

Foreign currency forward contracts Interest expense 89

Commodity price swap contracts Cost of sales (4)
Total $ 89
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Location and Fair Value Amount of Derivative Instrents

The following tables summarize the fair value of’8Merivative instruments, excluding nonderivatinstruments used
as hedging instruments, and their location in thesolidated balance sheet. Notional amounts betewpresented at
period end foreign exchange rates, except inteaéstswaps, which are presented using the coniregption date’s
foreign exchange rate. Additional information wid#spect to the fair value of derivative instrumastsicluded in Note
11.

Gross Assets Liabilities
March 31, 2016 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 3,159 Other current asset: $ 72  Other current liabilitie  $ 83
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,192 Other assets 26  Other liabilities 26
Interest rate swap contracts 1,853 Other assets 53 Other current liabilitie 1
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 151 $ 110
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 4,775  Other current assets $ 19 Other current liabilities $ 46
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 19 $ 46
Total derivative instruments $ 170 $ 156
Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2015 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac $ 2,815 Other current asset:  $ 148 Other current liabilitie  $ 14
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,24@®ther assets 61 Other liabilities 3
Interest rate swap contracts 1,753 Other assets 24  Other liabilities 1
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 233 $ 18
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,359 Other current assets $ 63  Other current liabilities $ 51
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 63 $ 51
Total derivative instruments $ 296 $ 69

Credit Risk and Offsetting of Assets and Liab#itié Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interest sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and pmtamtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively rnowsiits exposure to credit risk through the useretlit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interoaél banks and financial institutions as countaipgr3M enters into
master netting arrangements with counterpartieswgessible to mitigate credit risk in derivativarisactions. A master
netting arrangement may allow each counterpartetcsettle amounts owed between a 3M entity anddbaterparty
as a result of multiple, separate derivative tratisas. As of March 31, 2016, 3M has InternatiocBalaps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreements with pplacable banks and financial institutions whichntaon netting
provisions. In addition to a master agreement @ihsupported by a primary counterparty’s parentgotee, 3M also
has associated credit support agreements in plakel @ of its primary derivative counterparties woliniamong other
things, provide the circumstances under which ejlagty is required to post eligible collateral gvhthe market value
of transactions covered by these agreements exspedsied thresholds or if a counterparty’s crediing has been
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downgraded to a predetermined rating). The Complaeg not anticipate nonperformance by any of these
counterparties.

3M has elected to present the fair value of derreadissets and liabilities within the Company’s saidated balance
sheet on a gross basis even when derivative triimsa@re subject to master netting arrangementsray otherwise
qualify for net presentation. However, the follogitables provide information as if the Company &ksttted to offset
the asset and liability balances of derivativerunsients, netted in accordance with various critieriiie event of default
or termination as stipulated by the terms of ngtdrrangements with each of the counterpartiese&on counterparty,
if netted, the Company would offset the asset &tiility balances of all derivatives at the endla# reporting period
based on the 3M entity that is a party to the tatisns. Derivatives not subject to master nettiggeements are not
eligible for net presentation. As of the applicatidees presented below, no collateral had beelvester pledged
related to these derivative instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Assets under Master NettingAgreements with Derivative Counterparties

March 31, 2016 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Amat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 170 $ 86 $ — % 84
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 170 $ 84
December 31, 2015 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Amat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 296 $ 37 % — % 259
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 296 $ 259

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities under Master Netting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

March 31, 2016 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Amat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 156 $ 86 $ — % 70
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 156 $ 70
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December 31, 2015 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Amat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 64 $ 37 % — 3% 27
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 5 5
Total $ 69 $ 32

Currency Effects

3M estimates that year-on-year foreign currencysaations effects, including hedging impacts, iasesl pre-tax
income by approximately $10 million for the threemths ended March 31, 2016. These estimates intladsaction
gains and losses, including derivative instrumeetsigned to reduce foreign currency exchange isite and any
impacts from swapping Venezuelan bolivars into d@lars.

NOTE 11. Fair Value Measurements

3M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosyresth respect to assets and liabilities that aeasured
at fair value on a recurring basis and nonrecurpiagjs. Under the standard, fair value is defireetha exit price, or the
amount that would be received to sell an asseair o transfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market
participants as of the measurement date. The sthadko establishes a hierarchy for inputs useddasuring fair value
that maximizes the use of observable inputs andhmiEes the use of unobservable inputs by requitliag the most
observable inputs be used when available. Obserwapiits are inputs market participants would aseailuing the
asset or liability developed based on market dbtaiwed from sources independent of the Compangbbkrvable
inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s asdiomp about the factors market participants wowld i valuing the
asset or liability developed based upon the béstrimation available in the circumstances. The mmais broken
down into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quotedgs (unadjusted) in active markets for identasdets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similasets or liabilities in active markets, quoted psitar identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that aog active, and inputs (other than quoted prices) &ine observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectliyevel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability.
Categorization within the valuation hierarchy iséd upon the lowest level of input that is sigmifitto the fair value
measurement.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faitiéaon a Recurring Basis:

For 3M, assets and liabilities that are measurddiatvalue on a recurring basis primarily relaieavailable-for-sale
marketable securities, available-for-sale investséncluded as part of investments in the Constdid Balance Sheet)
and certain derivative instruments. Derivativesude cash flow hedges, interest rate swaps anshviestment hedges.
The information in the following paragraphs andéeatprimarily addresses matters relative to themm€ial assets and
liabilities. Separately, there were no material f@lue measurements with respect to nonfinansss or liabilities
that are recognized or disclosed at fair valudnén@ompany’s financial statements on a recurrirgistfar the three
months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.

3M uses various valuation techniques, which anmgrily based upon the market and income approaghtsrespect
to financial assets and liabilities. Following isl@scription of the valuation methodologies usedHe respective
financial assets and liabilities measured at falus.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — excegtain U.S. municipal securities:

Marketable securities, except certain U.S. munl@paurities, are valued utilizing multiple sourcAsveighted average

market price is used for these securities. Markieep are obtained for these securities from aetsof industry
standard data providers, security master files fiamge financial institutions, and other third-gasburces. These
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multiple prices are used as inputs into a distithniturve-based algorithm to determine the daily\falue to be used.
3M classifies U.S. treasury securities as leveltiile all other marketable securities (excludinga&i@ U.S. municipal
securities) are classified as level 2. Marketablausties are discussed further in Note 7.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — certdi®. municipal securities only:

In the fourth quarter of 2014 and first quarte261.6, 3M obtained municipal bonds from the Cit\Nefvada, Missouri,
which represent 3M’s only U.S. municipal securitieéding as of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2Dig to the
nature of this security, the valuation method zeitl will include the financial health of the Citl/evada, any recent
municipal bond issuances by Nevada, and macroedormmsiderations related to the direction of iagtrrates and the
health of the overall municipal bond market, andwish has been classified as a level 3 security.

Available-for-sale investments:

Investments include equity securities that areetiaid an active market. Closing stock prices aaglifg available from
active markets and are used as being representditiae value. 3M classifies these securitieseagl 1.

Derivative instruments:

The Company’s derivative assets and liabilitieimithe scope of ASC 81Berivatives and Hedgingre required to
be recorded at fair value. The Company’s derivatihat are recorded at fair value include foreigmency forward and
option contracts, commaodity price swaps, interatd swaps, and net investment hedges where théngadgtrument is
recorded at fair value. Net investment hedgesubatforeign currency denominated debt to hedge 3itsnvestment
are not impacted by the fair value measurementatanunder ASC 820, as the debt used as the hebfgitngment is
marked to a value with respect to changes in spetdn currency exchange rates and not with redpeather factors
that may impact fair value.

3M has determined that foreign currency forwardsnmodity price swaps, currency swaps, foreign euyeptions,
interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps &itomsidered level 2 measurements. 3M uses inghes than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset. Thesgspclude foreign currency exchange rates, \itlas, and interest
rates. Derivative positions are primarily valuethgsstandard calculations/models that use as fasis readily
observable market parameters. Industry standaedptaviders are 3M’s primary source for forward apdt rate
information for both interest rates and currendgsawith resulting valuations periodically validdtthrough third-party
or counterparty quotes and a net present valuarstod cash flows model.
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The following tables provide information by levekfassets and liabilities that are measured av#&ire on a recurring
basis.

Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) March 31, 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Foreign government agency securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Corporate debt securities 10 — 10 —
Commercial paper 36 — 36 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 46 — 46 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 44 — 44 —
Credit card related 19 — 19 —
Equipment lease related 1 — 1 —
Other 7 — 7 —
U.S. municipal securities 18 — — 18
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 117 — 117 —
Interest rate swap contracts 53 — 53 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 155 — 155 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —

Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) December3l, 201! Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Foreign government agency securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Corporate debt securities 10 — 10 —
Commercial paper 12 — 12 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 26 — 26 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 26 — 26 —
Credit card related 10 — 10 —
Equipment lease related 2 — 2 —
Other 19 — 19 —
U.S. municipal securities 12 — — 12
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 272 — 272 —
Interest rate swap contracts 24 — 24 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 68 — 68 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —
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The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of items measutifadt aalue on a
recurring basis in the table above that used saamif unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Three months ended

Marketable securities — certain U.S. municipal seatties only March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Beginning balance $ 12 $ 15

Total gains or losses:
Included in earnings — —
Included in other comprehensive income — —
Purchases and issuances 6 —
Sales and settlements — —
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — —
Ending balance $ 18 $ 15

Change in unrealized gains or losses for the pénicldded in earnings for
securities held at the end of the reporting period — —

In addition, the plan assets of 3M’s pension anstnetirement benefit plans are measured at fairevah a recurring
basis (at least annually). Refer to Note 11 in 38045 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faiti¢aon a Nonrecurring Basis:

Disclosures are required for certain assets abditias that are measured at fair value, but ammgnized and disclosed
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in periodsseguent to initial recognition. For 3M, such meaments of fair
value relate primarily to long-lived asset impaintge There were no material long-lived asset immpaitts for the three
months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company'’s financial instruments include cash@ash equivalents, marketable securities, accaaotivable,
certain investments, accounts payable, borrowiaigd,derivative contracts. The fair values of cagh@ash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payabteshort-term borrowings and current portioroofg-term debt
(except medium-term fixed rate notes totaling $floi, which will mature in September 2016 and shewn separately
in the table below) approximated carrying valuesdose of the short-term nature of these instruméwtsilable-for-
sale marketable securities and investments, irtiaddb certain derivative instruments, are recdrdefair values as
indicated in the preceding disclosures. For itgHerm debt, the Company utilized third-party qsdie estimate fair
values (classified as level 2). Information witlspect to the carrying amounts and estimated féiregeof these
financial instruments follow:

March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Millions) Value Value Value Value
Medium-term fixed rate notes due September 2016 $ 999 $ 1,002 $ 999 $ 1,003
Long-term debt, excluding current portion and mediu
term fixed rate notes due September 2016 8,927 9,559 8,753 9,101

The fair values reflected above consider the tarhtke related debt absent the impacts of derietivdging activity.
The carrying amount of long-term debt referenceavabis impacted by certain fixed-to-floating intereate swaps that
are designated as fair value hedges and by thgrdg&in of fixed rate Eurobond securities issuetheyCompany as
hedging instruments of the Company’s net investrireits European subsidiaries. Many of 3M'’s fixeder bonds were
trading at a premium at March 31, 2016 and Decer8be2015 due to the low interest rates and tighteof 3M’s
credit spreads.

32



NOTE 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings:

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are imegbim numerous claims and lawsuits, principallyhi@ United
States, and regulatory proceedings worldwide. Thedede various products liability (involving procts that the
Company now or formerly manufactured and soldgliettual property, and commercial claims and latgsincluding
those brought under the antitrust laws, and enwiertal proceedings. Unless otherwise stated, timep@ay is
vigorously defending all such litigation. Additidriaformation about the Company’s process for disafe and
recording of liabilities and insurance receivabigated to legal proceedings can be found in Ndt&Cbmmitments
and Contingencies” in the Company’s Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The following sections first describe the signifitéegal proceedings in which the Company is inedlvand then
describe the liabilities and associated insuraaceivables the Company has accrued relating sigtsficant legal
proceedings.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation

As of March 31, 2016, the Company is a named defieavith multiple co-defendants, in numerous lavgsim various
courts that purport to represent approximately @ jb@lividual claimants, compared to approximatey3® individual
claimants with actions pending at December 31, 2015

The vast majority of the lawsuits and claims reedlby and currently pending against the Compamgeallse of some
of the Company’s mask and respirator products arf damages from the Company and other defendarasiéged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsestitica, coal mine dust or other occupationakslésund in
products manufactured by other defendants or gyparahe workplace. A minority of the lawsuits éclaims resolved
by and currently pending against the Company gdlgexidege personal injury from occupational exp@sto asbestos
from products previously manufactured by the Comparhich are often unspecified, as well as produosasiufactured
by other defendants, or occasionally at Compangnses.

The Company'’s current volume of new and pendingemais substantially lower than it experiencethatpeak of
filings in 2003. The Company expects that filingctdims by unimpaired claimants in the future waintinue to be at
much lower levels than in the past. Accordinglg thumber of claims alleging more serious injuriesluding
mesothelioma and other malignancies, will repreaeagrieater percentage of total claims than in #s. @he Company
has prevailed in all ten cases taken to trialudiclg eight of the nine cases tried to verdict isuials occurred in 1999,
2000, 2001, 2003, 2004, 2007, and 2015), and aellappreversal in 2005 of the 2001 jury verdictede to the
Company. The remaining case, tried in 2009, wasidised by the court at the close of plaintiff'sdmnce, based on the
court’s legal finding that the plaintiff had notgzented sufficient evidence to support a jury \@rdihe plaintiff in the
2015 trial has filed an appeal to the Missouri CafitAppeals. Briefing is complete and a decisiamf the court is
pending.

The Company has demonstrated in these past toakpdings that its respiratory protection prodactseffective as
claimed when used in the intended manner and imteaded circumstances. Consequently the Compelisnves that
claimants are unable to establish that their médmaditions, even if significant, are attributaldethe Company’s
respiratory protection products. Nonetheless the@oy'’s litigation experience indicates that clamhgersons with
malignant conditions are costlier to resolve tHandlaims of unimpaired persons, and it therefeleebes the average
cost of resolving pending and future claims on ragt@m basis will continue to be higher than ipexienced in prior
periods when the vast majority of claims were assdpy medically unimpaired claimants.

As previously reported, the State of West Virgitlapugh its Attorney General, filed a complain®03 against the
Company and two other manufacturers of respirgtooyection products in the Circuit Court of Lincddounty, West
Virginia and amended its complaint in 2005. The adssl complaint seeks substantial, but unspecifiechpensatory
damages primarily for reimbursement of the codegjadly incurred by the State for worker’'s compéinssand

healthcare benefits provided to all workers withggational pneumoconiosis and unspecified pundamages. The
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case was inactive from the fourth quarter of 200 late 2013, other than a case management camferin

March 2011. In November 2013, the State filed aiomato bifurcate the lawsuit into separate liaikind damages
proceedings. At the hearing on the motion, the todeclined to bifurcate the lawsuit. No liabilitasibeen recorded for
this matter because the Company believes thatitialsi not probable and estimable at this timeatidition, the
Company is not able to estimate a possible losarage of loss given the lack of any meaningful aveey responses by
the State of West Virginia, the otherwise minimetivdty in this case and the fact that the comglaisserts claims
against two other manufacturers where a defendahéige of liability may turn on the law of jointdareveral liability
and by the amount of fault, if any, a jury mighbahte to each defendant if the case is ultimatédyg.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Liabilities and InsuraReeeivablesThe Company estimates its respirator mask/asbestos
liabilities, including the cost to resolve the ofai and defense costs, by examining: (i) the Conipaxperience in
resolving claims, (ii) apparent trends, (iii) thegparent quality of claimse(g.,whether the claim has been asserted on
behalf of asymptomatic claimants), (iv) changethannature and mix of claims.@.,the proportion of claims asserting
usage of the Company’s mask or respirator procardisalleging exposure to each of asbestos, silaa,or other
occupational dusts, and claims pleading use ofsaggeontaining products allegedly manufacturetheyCompany),

(v) the number of current claims and a projectibthe number of future asbestos and other claimsrttay be filed
against the Company, (vi) the cost to resolve régeettled claims, and (vii) an estimate of thetdo resolve and
defend against current and future claims.

Developments may occur that could affect the Comisagstimate of its liabilities. These developmentdude, but are
not limited to, significant changes in (i) the nuenlof future claims, (ii) the average cost of resa claims, (iii) the
legal costs of defending these claims and in miima trial readiness, (iv) changes in the mix aature of claims
received, (v) trial and appellate outcomes, (varajes in the law and procedure applicable to tblesms, and (vii) the
financial viability of other co-defendants and irems.

As a result of the Company'’s cost of resolvingrosiof persons who claim more serious injuries udiclg
mesothelioma and other malignancies, the Compamgased its accruals in the first quarter of 2@k6dspirator
mask/asbestos liabilities by $11 million. In thesfiquarter of 2016, the Company made paymentedal fees and
settlements of $14 million related to the respiratask/asbestos litigation. As of March 31, 20h&, Company had
accruals for respirator mask/asbestos liabilitie$lel1 million (excluding Aearo accruals). This aa represents the
low end in a range of loss. The Company cannotnaséi the amount or upper end of the range of araduyntvhich the
liability may exceed the accrual the Company haabdished because of the (i) inherent difficultypimjecting the
number of claims that have not yet been assertéiiedime period in which future claims may be a®sk (ii) the
complaints nearly always assert claims againstipheltiefendants where the damages alleged areatiypiwt
attributed to individual defendants so that a deééet’s share of liability may turn on the law oifrjband several
liability, which can vary by state, (iii) the myite factors described above that the Company cerssid estimating its
liabilities, and (iv) the several possible devel@gmts described above that may occur that couldtafie Company’s
estimate of liabilities.

As of March 31, 2016, the Company’s receivablerisurance recoveries related to the respirator raabkstos
litigation was $39 million. The Company estimatesurance receivables based on an analysis oflitsgs including
their exclusions, pertinent case law interpretiamparable policies, its experience with similairoks and an
assessment of the nature of each claim and rengatoverage. The Company then records an amouasitbncluded
is likely to be recovered. Various factors coultéef the timing and amount of recovery of this reable, including

(i) delays in or avoidance of payment by insuréisthe extent to which insurers may become insohin the future,
and (iii) the outcome of negotiations with insurargl legal proceedings with respect to respira@skiasbestos
liability insurance coverage.

The Company has unresolved coverage with claimsermmadiers for respirator mask claims. The Compamso

seeking coverage under the policies of certainhes insurers. Once those claims for coverageeselved, the
Company will have collected substantially all af iemaining insurance coverage for respirator nagble/stos claims.
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Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation — Aearo Tecba@s

On April 1, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company pas#d the stock of Aearo Holding Corp., the paréitearo
Technologies (“Aearo”). Aearo manufactured and s@ldous products, including personal protectionipment, such
as eye, ear, head, face, fall and certain respyrgtotection products.

As of March 31, 2016, Aearo and/or other compatiias previously owned and operated Aearo’s resmilatisiness
(American Optical Corporation, Warner-Lambert LLAD) Corp. and Cabot Corporation (“Cabot”)) are named
defendants, with multiple co-defendants, includimg Company, in numerous lawsuits in various caartghich
plaintiffs allege use of mask and respirator présland seek damages from Aearo and other defenfitaratbeged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsesitica-related, or other occupational dusts ébumproducts
manufactured by other defendants or generallyenitbrkplace.

As of March 31, 2016, the Company, through its Aearbsidiary, had accruals of $21 million for prodiiabilities and
defense costs related to current and future Aegleded asbestos and silica-related claims. Redpibitysfor legal costs,
as well as for settlements and judgments, is ctiyehared in an informal arrangement among Ae@semot, American
Optical Corporation and a subsidiary of Warner Lanhland their respective insurers (the “Payor Gipugability is
allocated among the parties based on the numbgyaw$ each company sold respiratory products uheenO

Safety” brand and/or owned the AO Safety Divisidrimerican Optical Corporation and the alleged gezrexposure
of the individual plaintiff. Aearo’s share of thergingent liability is further limited by an agreent entered into
between Aearo and Cabot on July 11, 1995. Thiseaggeet provides that, so long as Aearo pays to Cabogarterly fee
of $100,000, Cabot will retain responsibility amability for, and indemnify Aearo against, any puoatlliability claims
involving exposure to asbestos, silica, or sificaducts for respirators sold prior to July 11, 39Because of the
difficulty in determining how long a particular mgator remains in the stream of commerce aftemdpeold, Aearo and
Cabot have applied the agreement to claims ar@min@f the alleged use of respirators involving@sqre to asbestos,
silica or silica products prior to January 1, 199/ith these arrangements in place, Aearo’s poteliaility is limited

to exposures alleged to have arisen from the usespirators involving exposure to asbestos, siticailica products
on or after January 1, 1997. To date, Aearo hatezldo pay the quarterly fee. Aearo could potdgtize exposed to
additional claims for some part of the pre-July 1995 period covered by its agreement with CabAge#ro elects to
discontinue its participation in this arrangementif Cabot is no longer able to meet its obligatian these matters.

In March 2012, Cabot CSC Corporation and Cabot Qatjon filed a lawsuit against Aearo in the Supe@ourt of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts seeking declaratligfras to the scope of Cabot’s indemnity obligasi under the
July 11, 1995 agreement, including whether Cabstratined liability for coal workers’ pneumocongslaims, and
seeking damages for breach of contract. In 20Bi¢tturt granted Aearo’s motion for summary judgrmamtwo
claims, but declined to rule on two issues: thejdiability for certain known coal mine dustiauits; and Cabot's
claim for allocation of liability between injuriedlegedly caused by exposure to coal mine dusirgades allegedly
caused by exposure to silica dust. Following addil discovery, the parties filed new motions famsnary judgment.
In February 2016, the court ruled in favor of Aearothese two remaining issues, and ordered thadtCand not
Aearo, is solely responsible for all liability fidre coal mine dust lawsuits under the 1995 agreer@aot has
appealed.

Developments may occur that could affect the esérnfAearo’s liabilities. These developments in&ubut are not
limited to: (i) significant changes in the numbéifuture claims, (ii) significant changes in theeaage cost of resolving
claims, (iii) significant changes in the legal sosf defending these claims, (iv) significant chesign the mix and
nature of claims received, (v) trial and appel@técomes, (vi) significant changes in the law aratpdure applicable
to these claims, (vii) significant changes in tladility allocation among the co-defendants, (Mifig financial viability
of members of the Payor Group including exhaustioavailable insurance coverage limits, and/or &xjetermination
that the interpretation of the contractual obligas on which Aearo has estimated its share oflitials inaccurate. The
Company cannot determine the impact of these gatelgvelopments on its current estimate of Aeast'are of
liability for these existing and future claimsalfiy of the developments described above were torpttee actual
amount of these liabilities for existing and futataeims could be significantly larger than the amicaccrued.
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Because of the inherent difficulty in projecting thumber of claims that have not yet been assdahedomplexity of
allocating responsibility for future claims amoing tPayor Group, and the several possible develojsntigat may occur
that could affect the estimate of Aearo’s liab##tj the Company cannot estimate the amount or i@r@@ounts by
which Aearo’s liability may exceed the accrual @@mpany has established.

Environmental Matters and Litigation

The Company’s operations are subject to environatdgvs and regulations including those pertairimgir emissions,
wastewater discharges, toxic substances, and titihg and disposal of solid and hazardous wastésgeable by
national, state, and local authorities around thddy and private parties in the United States@mwad. These laws
and regulations provide, under certain circumstanadoasis for the remediation of contaminationydstoration of or
compensation for damages to natural resourcedoamersonal injury and property damage claims. Thenpany has
incurred, and will continue to incur, costs anditd@xpenditures in complying with these laws aaglulations,
defending personal injury and property damage cdaand modifying its business operations in lights
environmental responsibilities. In its effort tdisty its environmental responsibilities and compligh environmental
laws and regulations, the Company has establighetiperiodically updates, policies relating to eowimental
standards of performance for its operations wordigwi

Under certain environmental laws, including thetgdiStates Comprehensive Environmental Responsep&usation
and Liability Act of 1980 and similar state lawsetCompany may be jointly and severally liablejdgfy with other
companies, for the costs of remediation of envirental contamination at current or former faciliteesd at off-site
locations. The Company has identified numeroustions, most of which are in the United States, ictvit may have
some liability. Please refer to the section erditiEnvironmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivabldsat follows for
information on the amount of the accrual.

Environmental Matters

As previously reported, the Company has been vatilptcooperating with ongoing reviews by locahtst, federal
(primarily the U.S. Environmental Protection Ager{&PA)), and international agencies of possibleremmental and
health effects of various perfluorinated compoufie$Cs”), including perfluorooctanyl compounds swash
perfluorooctanoate (“PFOA”) and perfluorooctandauste (“PFOS”). As a result of its phase-out diecisn

May 2000, the Company no longer manufactures padluctanyl compounds. The company ceased manuifagtand
using the vast majority of these compounds witlgpraximately two years of the phase-out announcénaed ceased
all manufacturing and the last significant usehig themistry by the end of 2008. Through its ongdife cycle
management and its raw material composition idieatibn processes associated with the Companyisipsicovering
the use of all persistent and bio-accumulative rrate the Company has on occasion identified tlesgnce of
precursor chemicals in materials received from Beppthat may ultimately degrade to PFOA, PFOSsimilar
compounds. Upon such identification, the Compangk&/to find alternatives for such materials.

Regulatory activities concerning PFOA and/or PFOftiaue in the United States, Europe and elsewlagiek before
certain international bodies. These activitiesudel gathering of exposure and use information,aggessment, and
consideration of regulatory approaches. As thetdesta of studies of both chemicals has expandedRAehas
developed draft human health effects documents srinimg the available data from these studies.dbréary 2014,
the EPA initiated external peer review of its diafiman health effects documents for PFOA and PHOGS& peer review
panel met in August 2014. The EPA has stated tiiaiing the peer review process it will reviseliisalth effects
documents and use them to establish lifetime healtfisories for PFOS and PFOA in drinking watefetime health
advisories, while not enforceable, serve as guielamzl are benchmarks for determining if concemtnatof chemicals
in tap water from public utilities are safe for fialconsumption. Once finalized, the EPA stated tha lifetime health
advisories are expected to supersede the providieadth advisories for PFOA and PFOS in drinkiratev issued by
the EPA in 2009 — currently at 0.4 micrograms [ter for PFOA and 0.2 micrograms per liter for PE@8an effort
to collect exposure information under the Safe Kirig Water Act, the EPA published on May 2, 201B&&of
unregulated substances, including six PFCs, redjtiirde monitored during the period 2013-2015 hylipuwvater
system suppliers to determine the extent of thetuoence. The EPA is reporting results from thisreise on a rolling
basis that will continue in 2016. Through year-20d5, the EPA has reported results for 4,764 puwiditer supplies
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nationwide. None of these have reported PFOA alblw@rovisional health advisory level issued byHERA in 2009,
and seventeen have reported PFOS levels abov@@®eovisional health advisory.

The Company is continuing to make progress in askwunder the supervision of state regulatorgddress its historic
disposal of PFC-containing waste associated withufaturing operations at the Decatur, Alabamataget Grove,
Minnesota, and Cordova, lllinois plants.

As previously reported, the Company entered intolantary remedial action agreement with the Alabddepartment
of Environmental Management (ADEM) to address ttesence of PFCs in the soil at the Company’s matwrfiag
facility in Decatur, Alabama. Pursuant to a perissued by ADEM, for approximately twenty years, @@mpany
incorporated its wastewater treatment plant sluaiggaining PFCs in fields at its Decatur facilifter a review of the
available options to address the presence of Pr@®isoil, ADEM agreed that the preferred reméatiabption is to
use a multilayer cap over the former sludge incafion areas on the manufacturing site with subsetjgroundwater
migration controls and treatment. Implementatiothet plan continues and is expected to be conplat2018.

The Company continues to work with the Minnesotlufion Control Agency (MPCA) pursuant to the terofghe
previously disclosed May 2007 Settlement Agreenaaidt Consent Order to address the presence ofrc@fs in the
soil and groundwater at former disposal sites irshifegton County, Minnesota (Oakdale and Woodbung) & the
Company’s manufacturing facility at Cottage GroMnnesota. Under this agreement, the Company’'sjpat
obligations include (i) evaluating releases of@@rPFCs from these sites and proposing respotisssic(ii) providing
treatment or alternative drinking water upon idging any level exceeding a Health Based Value (\WBor Health
Risk Limit (“HRL") (i.e., the amount of a chemica drinking water determined by the Minnesota Dépant of
Health (MDH) to be safe for human consumption avéfetime) for certain PFCs for which a HBV andHRL exists
as a result of contamination from these site9;r@imediating identified sources of other PFChas¢ sites that are not
controlled by actions to remediate PFOA and PF®@8;(&) sharing information with the MPCA about tzén
perfluorinated compounds. During 2008, the MPCAiéggsformal decisions adopting remedial optiongtierformer
disposal sites in Washington County, Minnesota (@aékand Woodbury). In August 2009, the MPCA issaddrmal
decision adopting remedial options for the Compai@ottage Grove manufacturing facility. During #pging and
summer of 2010, 3M began implementing the agreet upmedial options at the Cottage Grove and Wogdsites.
3M commenced the remedial option at the Oakdageisitate 2010. At each location the remedial optiovere
recommended by the Company and approved by the MR€@ediation work has been completed at the Oalatad
Woodbury sites, and they are in an operational teaance mode. Remediation will continue at theag@ttGrove site
during 2016.

In August 2014, the lllinois EPA approved a requlsthe Company to establish a groundwater manageroae at its
manufacturing facility in Cordova, lllinois, whighcludes ongoing pumping of impacted site grounéwajroundwater
monitoring and routine reporting of results.

The Company cannot predict what additional regueaations arising from the foregoing proceedingd activities, if
any, may be taken regarding such compounds orathgeguences of any such actions.

Environmental Litigation

As previously reported, a former employee filedugported class action lawsuit in 2002 in the Cir€ourt of Morgan
County, Alabama (the “St. John” case), seekingatadtdamages and alleging that the plaintiffs sefféear, increased
risk, subclinical injuries, and property damagerfrexposure to certain perfluorochemicals at or tleaiCompany’s
Decatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility. The canr2005 granted the Company’s motion to dismissrthmed
plaintiff's personal injury-related claims on thadis that such claims are barred by the exclusprityisions of the
state’s Workers Compensation Act. The plaintifistinsel filed an amended complaint in November 2061iing the
case to property damage claims on behalf of a ptegalass of residents and property owners irvitiaity of the
Decatur plant. In June 2015, the plaintiffs filedaanended complaint adding additional defendantsyding BFI
Waste Management Systems of Alabama, LLC; BFI Wislsteagement of North America, LLC; the City of Daga
Alabama; Morgan County, Alabama; Municipal Utilgi@oard of Decatur; and Morgan County, Alabamajadliecatur
Utilities. In September 2015, the court issuedleedaling order staying discovery pending mediatitnich occurred in
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January 2016, but did not resolve the case andattes continue their negotiations. A hearing las certification is
scheduled for November 2016.

In 2005, the judge in a second purported classmadiwsuit filed by three residents of Morgan Couitlabama,
seeking unstated compensatory and punitive daniagelving alleged damage to their property from ssions of
certain perfluorochemical compounds from the Corgfgabecatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility thatrherly
manufactured those compounds (the “Chandler” agisajted the Company’s motion to abate the casectefély
putting the case on hold pending the resolutiodass certification issues in the St. John casspDethe stay,
plaintiffs filed an amended complaint seeking daesafpr alleged personal injuries and property danmagbehalf of
the named plaintiffs and the members of a purpartask. No further action in the case is expectadelss and until the
stay is lifted.

In February 2009, a resident of Franklin Countyaleima, filed a purported class action lawsuit enGlircuit Court of
Franklin County (the “Stover” case) seeking compémy damages and injunctive relief based on tipdication by the
Decatur utility’s wastewater treatment plant of teagater treatment sludge to farmland and grasslariie state that
allegedly contain PFOA, PFOS and other perfluoratbels. The named plaintiff seeks to represenaascdf all
persons within the State of Alabama who have hadRPFOS, and other perfluorochemicals releasateposited on
their property. In March 2010, the Alabama Supr&oert ordered the case transferred from Franklinr®pto
Morgan County. In May 2010, consistent with its dilémg of the other matters, the Morgan County Gir@ourt abated
this case, putting it on hold pending the resoluttbthe class certification issues in the St. Jodse.

In October 2015, West Morgan-East Lawrence Wat&esver Authority (“Water Authority”) filed an indidual
complaint against 3M Company, Dyneon, L.L.C, andikidaAmerica, Inc., in the U.S. District Court ftlre Northern
District of Alabama. The complaint also includepresentative plaintiffs who brought the complaintehalf of
themselves, and a class of all owners and posseskproperty who use water provided by the Watetharity and five
local water works to which the Water Authority slipg water (collectively, the “Water Utilities”).lie complaint seeks
compensatory and punitive damages and injunctiief lsased on allegations that the defendants’ ¢bais) including
PFOA and PFOS from their manufacturing process&eatur, have contaminated the water in the TesaeeRiver at
the water intake, and that the chemicals canno¢fm®ved by the water treatment processes utiligetids\Water
Authority. 3M has moved to dismiss the case onllggaunds. That motion is pending.

In December 2010, the State of Minnesota, by iterAty General Lori Swanson, acting in its capaagtyrustee of the
natural resources of the State of Minnesota, filéawsuit in Hennepin County District Court agaiBBst to recover
damages (including unspecified assessment costeeasdnable attorney’s fees) for alleged injurydstruction of, and
loss of use of certain of the State’s natural resssiunder the Minnesota Environmental Responsé.iaibdity Act
(MERLA) and the Minnesota Water Pollution ContradtAMWPCA), as well as statutory nuisance and comfaav
claims of trespass, nuisance, and negligence w#pect to the presence of PFCs in the groundveatdgce water, fish
or other aquatic life, and sediments (the “NRD LaitV}. The State also seeks declarations under M&ERiat 3M is
responsible for all damages the State may sufférdarfuture for injuries to natural resources fraleases of PFCs into
the environment, and under MWPCA that 3M is resfiador compensation for future loss or destructid fish,
aquatic life, and other damages.

In November 2011, the Metropolitan Council filedhation to intervene and a complaint in the NRD Laitvseeking
compensatory damages and other legal, declaratongguitable relief, including reasonable attorhégess, for costs
and fees that the Metropolitan Council allegesilitlve required to assess at some time in the éuifuthe MPCA
imposes restrictions on Metropolitan Council’s PR@i&harges to the Mississippi River, including itm&tallation and
maintenance of a water treatment system. The Melitap Council’s intervention motion was based enesal theories,
including common law negligence, and statutorymstaunder MERLA for response costs, and under thebtota
Environmental Rights Act (MERA) for declaratory aeguitable relief against 3M for PFOS and other PB{lution of
the waters and sediments of the Mississippi Ri#®rdid not object to the motion to intervene. Imdary 2012, 3M
answered the Metropolitan Council’s complaint aifebfa counterclaim alleging that the Metropoli@ouncil
discharges PFCs to the Mississippi River and diggsaPFC-containing sludge and bio solids fromammore of its
wastewater treatment plants onto agricultural laanttblocal area landfills. Accordingly, 3M’s comiplaagainst the
Metropolitan Council asks that if the court finthsit the State is entitled to any of the damagesaks, 3M be awarded
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contribution and apportionment from the Metropalitaouncil, including attorneys’ fees, under MERlahd
contribution from and liability for the MetropoltaCouncil’s proportional share of damages awardetié State under
the MWPCA, as well as under statutory nuisancecamdmon law theories of trespass, nuisance, andgeege. 3M
also seeks declaratory relief under MERA.

In April 2012, 3M filed a motion to disqualify tH&tate of Minnesota’s counsel, Covington & BurlihgiP (Covington).
In October 2012, the court granted 3M’s motioniggdalify Covington as counsel to the State andSfta¢e and
Covington appealed the court’s disqualificatioriite Minnesota Court of Appeals. In July 2013, themédsota Court of
Appeals affirmed the district court’s disqualificat order. In October 2013, the Minnesota Supremmeryranted both
the State’s and Covington’s petition for reviewtlod decision of the Minnesota Court of AppealsApmil 2014, the
Minnesota Supreme Court affirmed in part, reveiaguhrt, and remanded the case to the districttdoufurther
proceedings. The district court took evidence @ndisqualification issues at a hearing in Octol#dr52 In February
2016, the district court ruled that Covington vielhthe professional ethics rule against reprasgaticlient (here the
State of Minnesota) in the same or substantialpted matter where that person’s interests arermalijeadverse to the
interests of a former client (3M). The district epinowever, denied 3M’s motion to disqualify Cogian because it
further found that 3M impliedly waived by delayitmassert the conflict. Other activity in the cashich had been
stayed pending the outcome of the disqualificaissne, has resumed. A trial date has not yet beteinsa separate but
related action, the Company filed suit against @gtan for breach of its fiduciary duties to the Gramy and for breach
of contract arising out of Covington’s represematof the State of Minnesota in the NRD Lawsuit.

For environmental litigation matters describedhiis section for which a liability, if any, has bemtorded, the
Company believes the amount recorded, as welleapdhsible loss or range of loss in excess of stablished accrual
is not material to the Company’s consolidated tesafl operations or financial condition. For thosatters for which a
liability has not been recorded, the Company beleany such liability is not probable and estimaiéd the Company
is not able to estimate a possible loss or randessfat this time.

Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

As of March 31, 2016, the Company had recordedlili#ls of $43 million for estimated “environmentamediation”
costs based upon an evaluation of currently availidzts with respect to each individual site alsth aecorded related
insurance receivables of $11 million. The Compasopords liabilities for remediation costs on an sndunted basis
when they are probable and reasonably estimabterghty no later than the completion of feasibibtydies or the
Company’s commitment to a plan of action. Liakel#ifor estimated costs of environmental remediatepending on
the site, are based primarily upon internal omdtfarty environmental studies, and estimates #staumber,
participation level and financial viability of amgher potentially responsible parties, the exténhe contamination and
the nature of required remedial actions. The Compaljusts recorded liabilities as further inforratidevelops or
circumstances change. The Company expects thdt gay the amounts recorded over the periods wfediation for
the applicable sites, currently ranging up to 28rge

As of March 31, 2016, the Company had recordedlili@ls of $34 million for “other environmental ldlities” based
upon an evaluation of currently available factgniplement the Settlement Agreement and ConsentrQvitle the
MPCA, the remedial action agreement with ADEM, ém@dddress trace amounts of perfluorinated comp®imd
drinking water sources in the City of Oakdale, Mirata, as well as presence in the soil and grouedwahthe
Company’s manufacturing facilities in Decatur, Adafla, and Cottage Grove, Minnesota, and at two fodisposal
sites in Washington County, Minnesota (Oakdale\Ambdbury). The Company expects that most of thadipg will
occur over the next four years. As of March 31,&0the Company’s receivable for insurance recoseséated to
“other environmental liabilities” was $15 million.

It is difficult to estimate the cost of environmahtompliance and remediation given the uncergsmtegarding the
interpretation and enforcement of applicable emvinental laws and regulations, the extent of enviremtal
contamination and the existence of alternativertipanethods. Developments may occur that coula tafffe
Company’s current assessment, including, but natdd to: (i) changes in the information availatdgarding the
environmental impact of the Company’s operatiorss products; (i) changes in environmental regulaicchanges in
permissible levels of specific compounds in drigkimater sources, or changes in enforcement theanigpolicies,
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including efforts to recover natural resource daesagiii) new and evolving analytical and remediattechniques;

(iv) success in allocating liability to other potially responsible parties; and (v) the financielbility of other
potentially responsible parties and third-partyeimhitors. For sites included in both “environmemngathediation
liabilities” and “other environmental liabilitiesdt which remediation activity is largely compleied remaining activity
relates primarily to operation and maintenancénefremedy, including required post-remediation rwirig, the
Company believes the exposure to loss in exceggeaimount accrued would not be material to the [2omy's
consolidated results of operations or financialditton. However, for locations at which remediatexctivity is largely
ongoing, the Company cannot estimate a possibéedosange of loss in excess of the associatedlss$tad accruals
for the reasons described above.

Other Matters
Commercial Litigation

3M sued TransWeb Corporation in Minnesota in 2@#Qrffringement of several 3M patents covering fination and
hydrocharging of filter media used in 3M’s respiratand furnace filters. TransWeb filed a declagajadgment action
in and successfully moved the litigation to the \D&trict Court for the District of New Jerseyge&ing a declaration of
invalidity and non-infringement of 3M’s patentsdafiurther alleging that 3M waited too long to em®iits rights.
TransWeb also alleged 3M obtained the patents ¢irinequitable conduct and that 3M’s attempt tomerd the patents
constituted a violation of the antitrust laws. Iowémber 2012, a jury returned a verdict in favol tdnsWeb on all but
one count, including findings that 3M’s patents evawvalid and not infringed, and that 3M had conteditan antitrust
violation by seeking to enforce a patent it hadaotstd fraudulently. The jury also recommended thatcourt find 3M
had committed inequitable conduct in obtainingpheents, and that the patents were therefore urmsble. Since the
vast majority of TransWeb’s claim for treble ant&t damages was in the form of its attorneys’ faebexpenses in
connection with the defense of the patent casepdhties agreed that the measure of damages wotilgbrto the jury,
but rather would be submitted to a special master the trial. In April, 2014, the court issued @er denying 3M’s
motions to set aside the jury’s verdict. In additithe court found two 3M patents unenforceabletdurequitable
conduct. The court accepted the special masteztammendation as to the amount of attorneys’ feéetawarded as
damages, and entered judgment against 3M in theainad approximately $26 million. In July 2014, 3Néd a notice
of appeal of the judgment to the U.S. Court of Agdpdor the Federal Circuit. On February 10, 2ah6,U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit issued its decigfirming the lower court’s judgment. In March B)BM paid
TransWeb $27 million in full satisfaction of thedgment.

Andover Healthcare filed an infringement suit agaBM in May 2013 in the U.S. District Court foetbistrict of
Delaware. Andover also filed a related infringemaction against 3M and 3M Deutschland GmbH in Ddmem2013 in
Mannheim, Germany. In both cases, Andover allelgasdertain of 3M’s self-adherent wraps, includ@agpan™ Latex
Free and Nexcare™ No Hurt Latex Free wraps, infiAgdover’s U.S. and German patents. 3M deniestthatinges
Andover’s patents, asserts that the patents aedidiiand claims that Andover should be precludechfany recovery,
in part because of its long delay in bringing thision. Trial in the U.S. matter is scheduled favmber 2016. A
hearing in the German infringement case occurre&ejstember 2014. In November 2014, the Germanciiat issued
a decision ordering the appointment of an expeassgist with analysis of whether 3M’s productsiimge Andover’'s
German patent. Separately, 3M filed a nullity atfio Germany, challenging the validity of AndoveGgrman patent.
At a hearing in July 2015, the German patent cawbked Andover’s German patents. Andover has dpgdhat
decision and, in April 2016, the German trial catetyed the infringement proceedings during thelpeay of
Andover’s appeal. No liability has been recordethi Andover litigation, as the Company believes #ny such
liability is not probable and estimable.

Product Liability Litigation

Electricité de France (EDF) filed a lawsuit agai®st France in the French courts in 2006 claiminmowercial loss and
property damage after experiencing electrical netalures which EDF claims were caused by allégeeéfective 3M
transition splices. The French Court of Appealgetsailles affirmed the commercial trial court’scggon that the
transition splices conformed to contract speciiara and that EDF thoroughly analyzed and testedphices before
purchase and installation. The Court of Appealsyéwer, ordered a court-appointed expert to studyptioblem and
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issue a technical opinion on the cause of the mitfedlures. The court-appointed expert submittedraport to the
commercial court in May 2014. The expert found ptitg defects in 3M’s product and found that EDEunred
damages in excess of 100 million euros. The expeginion is not dispositive of liability or damagand is subject to
numerous factual and legal challenges that willdiged with the court. The parties are briefingdbart on their
respective positions. Once the briefing is compléte commercial court may take from six monthere year to render
its decision.

One customer obtained an order in the French cagesist 3M Purification SAS (a French subsidiamypctober 2011
appointing an expert to determine the amount ofroencial loss and property damage allegedly caugediégedly
defective 3M filters used in the customer’s mantifeing process. An Austrian subsidiary of this saoustomer also
filed a claim against 3M Austria GmbH (an Austreubsidiary) and 3M Purification SAS in the Austrizourts

in September 2012 seeking damages for the sane iBbase two cases are still pending. Another costdiled a
lawsuit against 3M Deutschland GmbH (a German slidnsi) in the German courts in March 2012 seekimgmercial
loss and property damage allegedly caused by the 8M filters used in that customer’s manufactupnocess; the
Company has resolved the claims in the Germaratitg. The Company has also settled without litagathe claims of
two other customers arising out of the same isBhie.amounts paid are not material to the Compasgrsolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

As of March 31, 2016, the Company is a named defienich approximately 260 lawsuits, most of whick pending in
federal or state court in Minnesota, in which thargiffs claim they underwent various joint artptasty,
cardiovascular, and other surgeries and later dpeel surgical site infections due to the use oBhie Hugger™
patient warming system. The U.S. Judicial PanéViattidistrict Litigation granted the plaintiffs’ nteon to transfer and
consolidate all cases pending in federal courteeédJ.S. District Court for the District of Minngsato be managed in a
multi-district proceeding during the pre-trial pbasf the litigation. The Bair Hugger™ product liwas acquired by 3M
as part of the 2010 acquisition of Arizant, Incleading manufacturer of patient warming solutidasigned to prevent
hypothermia and maintain normal body temperatusungical settings. No liability has been recorétedhis matter
because the Company believes that any such liatslitot probable and estimable at this time.

For product liability litigation matters describadthis section for which a liability has been reted, the Company
believes the amount recorded is not material tabpany’s consolidated results of operationsrarftial condition.
In addition, the Company is not able to estimap@ssible loss or range of loss in excess of trebéshed accruals at
this time.
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NOTE 13. Stock-Based Compensation

The 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as discuss&M’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K, provides the
issuance or delivery of up to 100 million share8lgf common stock (including additional shareholdpprovals
subsequent to 2008) pursuant to awards granted timel@lan. Awards under this plan may be issudtiérform of
incentive stock options, nonqualified stock optigm®gressive stock options, stock appreciatiohtsigrestricted stock,
restricted stock units, other stock awards, anébpaance units and performance shares. The renggiatal shares
available for grant under the 2008 Long Term InisenPlan Program are 11,330,268 as of March 316201

The Company’s annual stock option and restrictedkstinit grant is made in February to provide argjrand
immediate link between the performance of individuduring the preceding year and the size of theitual stock
compensation grants. The grant to eligible emplsyeses the closing stock price on the grant dateoénting rules
require recognition of expense under a non-subigtamésting period approach, requiring compensagxpense
recognition when an employee is eligible to retiEmployees are considered eligible to retire atsgand after having
completed ten years of service. This retiree-digjimpulation represents 35 percent of the 201&argrant stock-
based compensation award expense dollars; therdiigheer stock-based compensation expense is reagahim the
first quarter.

In addition to the annual grants, the Company makiesr minor grants of stock options, restrictextktunits and other
stock-based grants. The Company issues cash segsigitted stock units and stock appreciationtsigh certain
countries. These grants do not result in the isstiaficommon stock and are considered immaterigh&yompany.

Amounts recognized in the financial statements wagpect to stock-based compensation programshviiitude stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock umiesformance shares and the General Employees’ $toabhase Plan
(GESPP), are provided in the following table. Calpied stock-based compensation amounts were retialeor the
three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.

During the first quarter of 2016, the Company addphASU No. 2016-09mprovements to Employee Share-Based

Payment Accountingrhe adoption is required to be implemented prospaly and impacted income tax benefits by
$81 million in the first quarter of 2016. See Néatéor additional information regarding ASU No. 2008.
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Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Three months ended

March 31,

(Millions) 2016 2015

Cost of sales $ 23 % 23
Selling, general and administrative expenses 96 88
Research, development and related expenses 25 27
Stock-based compensation expenses $ 144  $ 138
Income tax benefits $ (127 % (47)
Stock-based compensation expenses, net of tax $ 17 $ 91

Stock Option Program

The following table summarizes stock option acyidtiring the three months ended March 31, 2016:

Weighted
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic Value
Options Exercise Price Life (months)  (millions)
Under option —
January 1 38,552,44t $ 102.01
Granted:
Annual 5,591,727 147.99
Exercised (3,604,464) 87.47
Canceled (43,305 141.28
March 31 40,496,403 $ 109.61 74 $ 2,309
Options exercisable
March 31 29,338,088 $ 94.32 61 $ 2,121

Stock options vest over a period from one yeahted years with the expiration date at 10 yeans flate of grant. As
of March 31, 2016, there was $126 million of comgsion expense that has yet to be recognized defateon-vested
stock option based awards. This expense is expéxteel recognized over the remaining weighted-ayereesting
period of 26 months. The total intrinsic valuestafck options exercised were $253 million and $2fi8on during the
three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, regelyctCash received from options exercised wass$aillion and
$266 million for the three months ended March 311,&and 2015, respectively. The Company’s actuabémefits
realized for the tax deductions related to the @serof employee stock options were $93 million 88 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, regekct

For the primary 2016 annual stock option grantvieéghted average fair value at the date of graagt walculated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the aggtions that follow.
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Stock Option Assumptions

Annual
2016
Exercise price $ 147.87
Risk-free interest rate 1.5%
Dividend yield 2.5%
Expected volatility 20.8%
Expected life (months) 77
Black-Scholes fair value $ 22.47

Expected volatility is a statistical measure of éimount by which a stock price is expected to €flat# during a period.
For the 2016 annual grant date, the Company esithe expected volatility based upon the averdgfgeamost recent
one year volatility, the median of the term of wpected life rolling volatility, the median of theost recent term of
the expected life volatility of 3M stock, and theglied volatility on the grant date. The expecteaht assumption is
based on the weighted average of historical grants.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock segdricted stock unit activity during the threentis ended
March 31, 2016:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Nonvested balanc—
As of January 1 2,441,086 $ 127.47
Granted
Annual 749,915 148.22
Vested (864,826) 102.00
Forfeited (12,924 136.39
As of March 31 2,313,253 $ 143.67

As of March 31, 2016, there was $141 million of g@msation expense that has yet to be recognizaigdeio non-
vested restricted stock units and restricted stbhis expense is expected to be recognized oveethaining weighted-
average vesting period of 27 months. The totalMalue of restricted stock units and restrictedlsthat vested during
the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 201%&23 million and $155 million, respectively. Ther@oany’s
actual tax benefits realized for the tax deducti@ftsted to the vesting of restricted stock unitd eestricted stock was
$50 million and $58 million for the three monthgled March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Restricted stock units granted generally vest tigezgs following the grant date assuming continamegloyment.
Dividend equivalents equal to the dividends payall¢he same number of shares of 3M common stamkia®n these
restricted stock units during the vesting peridthaugh no dividend equivalents are paid on anthe$e restricted stock
units that are forfeited prior to the vesting d&ezidends are paid out in cash at the vest datestnicted stock units,
except for performance shares which do not earidelis. Since the rights to dividends are forfééathere is no
impact on basic earnings per share calculationsghtérl average restricted stock unit shares owtsigrare included

in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Performance Shares
Instead of restricted stock units, the Company makeual grants of performance shares to membésefecutive

management. The 2016 performance criteria for thes®rmance shares (organic volume growth, retarmvested
capital, free cash flow conversion, and earninggbare growth) were selected because the Compéirydxethat they
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are important drivers of long-term stockholder eallihe number of shares of 3M common stock thaldcactually be
delivered at the end of the three-year performamec®d may be anywhere from 0% to 200% of eachopesdince share
granted, depending on the performance of the Coymngaring such performance period. Non-substantesting
requires that expense for the performance sharescognized over one or three years depending @mwhch
individual became a 3M executive. Performance shdoenot accrue dividends during the performanciege
Therefore, the grant date fair value is determimgdeducing the closing stock price on the datgraft by the net
present value of dividends during the performarexgog.

The following table summarizes performance shati@igcduring the three months ended March 31, 2016

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Undistributed balance —

As of January 1 871,192 $ 120.89
Granted 205,069 159.34
Distributed (367,428 99.06
Performance change 7,462 152.35
Forfeited (4,493 145.27

As of March 31 711,802 $ 143.41

As of March 31, 2016, there was $42 million of ca@ngation expense that has yet to be recognize@deia
performance shares. This expense is expectedrecbgnized over the remaining weighted-averageimgsmperiod of
11 months. The total fair values of performanceehéhat were distributed were $54 million for btite three months
ended March 31, 2016 and 2015. The Company’s atgndlenefits realized for the tax deductions ezglab the
distribution of performance shares were $15 milfionboth the three months ended March 31, 201628.

NOTE 14. Business Segments

3M'’s businesses are organized, managed and iniegraliped into segments based on differences kets
products, technologies and services. 3M managepéstions in five business segments: Industsafety and
Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Energy;@adsumer. 3M’s five business segments bring togeitieamon or
related 3M technologies, enhancing the developmginnovative products and services and providogefficient
sharing of business resources. Transactions anamugtable segments are recorded at cost. 3M istegrated
enterprise characterized by substantial intersego@aperation, cost allocations and inventory tfarss Therefore,
management does not represent that these segifiepe;ated independently, would report the opagaihcome
information shown. The difference between operaitiegme and pre-tax income relates to interestrimecand interest
expense, which are not allocated to business segmen

Effective in the first quarter of 2016, 3M maderaguct line reporting change involving two of itsdiness segments in
its continuing effort to improve the alignment tf businesses around markets and customers.

The change between business segments was as follows
* Elements of the electronic bonding product linesengeviously separately reflected in the Electreni

Materials Solutions Division (Electronics and Enebysiness segment) and the Industrial Adhesivds an
Tapes Division (Industrial business segment). Eiffedn the first quarter of 2016, certain saled aperating
income results for these electronic bonding protioes in aggregate were equally divided between th
Electronics and Energy business segment and Inalustisiness segment. This change resulted in iedse in
net sales for total year 2015 of $33 million in thdustrial business segment offset by a correspgridcrease
in the Electronics and Energy business segment.

The financial information presented herein refleabtsimpact of the preceding product line reportthgnge between
business segments for all periods presented.
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Business Segment Information

Three months ended

March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Net Sales
Industrial $ 2576 $ 2,656
Safety and Graphics 1,412 1,372
Health Care 1,383 1,329
Electronics and Energy 1,144 1,324
Consumer 1,049 1,048
Corporate and Unallocated 1 2
Elimination of Dual Credit (156 (153
Total Company $ 7,409 $ 7,578
Operating Income
Industrial $ 617 $ 596
Safety and Graphics 345 335
Health Care 455 408
Electronics and Energy 208 285
Consumer 238 240
Corporate and Unallocated (41) (100)
Elimination of Dual Credit (34 (34
Total Company $ 1,788 $ 1,730

Corporate and unallocated operating income incladesriety of miscellaneous items, such as corpdratestment
gains and losses, certain derivative gains ané$s®rtain insurance-related gains and lossdsjrcéitigation and
environmental expenses, corporate restructuringgelseand certain under- or over-absorbed costsfertsion, stock-
based compensation) that the Company may choode atbcate directly to its business segmentsaBse this
category includes a variety of miscellaneous itéhis,subject to fluctuation on a quarterly anchaal basis.

3M business segment reporting measures includecdedit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated
operating income. Management evaluates each fifétbusiness segments based on net sales andiogenzome
performance, including dual credit U.S. reportiadurther incentivize U.S. sales growth. As a re2M provides
additional (“dual”) credit to those business segmeaelling products in the U.S. to an external musr when that
segment is not the primary seller of the produot.éxample, certain respirators are primarily $ntdhe Personal
Safety Division within the Safety and Graphics bass segment; however, the Industrial businessesgigaiso sells
this product to certain customers in its U.S. mekia this example, the non-primary selling segnferustrial) would
also receive credit for the associated net salegtidted and the related approximate operatimgine. The assigned
operating income related to dual credit activityym#fer from operating income that would resutirt actual costs
associated with such sales. The offset to the chealit business segment reporting is reflectedras@nciling item
entitled “Elimination of Dual Credit,” such thatlea and operating income for the U.S. in totalarehanged.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM*

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of 3Mr{pany:

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatechbalaheet of 3M Company and its subsidiaries &san€h 31,
2016, and the related consolidated statementscofie, comprehensive income, and cash flows fothitez-month
periods ended March 31, 2016 and 2015. Thesenmtfignancial statements are the responsibility ef@ompany’s

management.

We conducted our review in accordance with thedsteds of the Public Company Accounting OversighaglaUnited
States). A review of interim financial informatigonsists principally of applying analytical proceesiand making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial asdounting matters. It is substantially less inpgcthan an audit
conducted in accordance with the standards of tiic®Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt8s), the
objective of which is the expression of an opiniegarding the financial statements taken as a wiAaeordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any naterodifications that should be made to the accawyipg
consolidated interim financial statements for therbe in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in
the United States of America.

We previously audited, in accordance with the saadsl of the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@q&nited
States), the consolidated balance sheet as of Deredi, 2015, and the related consolidated statsnoéimcome,
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and dasis for the year then ended (not presented herang) in our
report dated February 11, 2016, which includedragraph that described the change in the manrecaafunting for
marketable securities and deferred tax assetsamitities, we expressed an unqualified opiniorttomse consolidated
financial statements. In our opinion, the inforimatset forth in the accompanying consolidated izdasheet
information as of December 31, 2015, is fairly esthin all material respects in relation to the odidated balance sheet
from which it has been derived.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 3, 2016

* Pursuant to Rule 436(c) of the Securities Act 839'Act”) this should not be considered a “repasithin the
meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act and thepreddent registered public accounting firm liapilinder
Section 11 does not extend to it.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of kancial Condition and Results of Operations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is desidrto
provide a reader of 3M’s financial statements waitharrative from the perspective of managements3WD&A is
presented in the following sections:

*  Overview

* Results of Operations

» Performance by Business Segment

» Financial Condition and Liquidity

e Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affegture Results

Forward-looking statements in Part |, ltem 2 mayolie risks and uncertainties that could causeltesudiffer
materially from those projected (refer to the satntitled “Cautionary Note Concerning FactorstTay Affect
Future Results” in Part |, Item 2 and the risk dastprovided in Part I, Item 1A for discussiontlése risks and
uncertainties).

OVERVIEW

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technolagyovator and marketer of a wide variety of praduand services.
3M manages its operations in five operating busisegments: Industrial; Safety and Graphics; Hezéite;
Electronics and Energy; and Consumer. From a gebargerspective, any references to EMEA referdmpe,
Middle East and Africa on a combined basis. Angrefices to “Membrana” refer to the former Sepanatidedia
business acquired by 3M from Polypore in 2015.

The stronger U.S. dollar negatively impacted salebearnings in the first quarter of 2016 versesséiime period last
year, while global economic growth was mixed. Desghiese challenges, 3M had positive organic loaalency
growth in three of its five business segments arallimajor geographic areas, except Asia Pa@fit.also expanded
operating income margins by 1.3 percentage pdiusrth-quarter 2015 restructuring actions, as dised in Note 4,
impacted approximately 1,700 positions worldwidentcibuting to an estimated pre-tax savings of apipnately $130
million for total year 2016.

Additional discussion of first quarter results @olis.
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common shaxdters — diluted:

The following table provides the increase (decreasdiluted earnings per share for the three-meetided March 31,
2016 compared to 2015.

Three months ended

(Earnings per diluted share) March 31, 2016
Same period last year $ 1.85
Increase/(decrease) in earnings per share - djldtezito:

Operational benefits 0.04
Acquisitions and divestitures 0.07
Foreign exchange impacts (0.05
Net interest expense (0.02)
Income tax rate 0.07
Shares of common stock outstanding 0.09

Current period $ 2.05

Net income attributable to 3M was $1.275 billion$@.05 per diluted share, in the first quartee@16, compared to
$1.199 billion, or $1.85 per diluted share, in finst quarter of 2015. Operational benefits inceshsarnings by 4 cents
per diluted share, which included a benefit of Bts@er diluted share related to lower defined fiepension and
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postretirement expenses. Operational benefitsiatdaded the combination of higher selling pricesl &ower raw
material costs, in addition to productivity benefielated to the fourth-quarter 2015 restructurirtgese operational
benefits were partially offset by the impact of ang sales volume declines and lower asset uiilizat

Acquisition and divestiture impacts, which are nuzad for the first twelve months post-transacti@fated to the 2015
acquisitions of Membrana, Capital Safety, and Ndaalical, plus the first-quarter 2016 divestitufdPolyfoam, the
fourth quarter 2015/first quarter 2016 divestitafehe library systems business, and the fourthitqu2015 divestiture
of the license plate converting business in Fra@eea combined basis, these acquisition/divestiyaez-on-year
impacts increased earnings by 7 cents per dildtatesdriven by divestiture gains and solid perfomoe from 2015
acquisitions.

Foreign currency impacts (net of hedging) decreasedax earnings by approximately $50 milliontlee equivalent of
5 cents per diluted share, excluding the impadébaign currency changes on tax rates.

Over the past few years, 3M has taken actionstterbeptimize its capital structure and reducedst of capital by
adding debt. These actions have led to an inciedagerest expense year-on-year, largely duegbdii average debt
balances.

The income tax rate was 26.8 percent in the fustrggr, down 2.7 percentage points versus lastsyBest quarter,
which increased earnings by approximately 7 ceetgdjiuted share. The decrease in tax rate wasmlity a number of
factors as referenced in Note 6, including the figarter 2016 adoption of Accounting Standardsai@gdASU) No.
2016-09 (discussed in Note 1).

Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding iffitstequarter of 2016 declined 4.3 percent yearyear to 621.3
million, which increased earnings by approximatlgents per diluted share.

Sales and operating income by business segment:

The following tables contain sales and operatimgine results by business segment for the threehs@mnided
March 31, 2016 and 2015. In addition to the discusbelow, refer to the section entitled “Perforroamy Business
Segment” later in MD&A for a more detailed discassdf the sales and income results of the Compadyita
respective business segments (including CorporatdJaallocated). Refer to Note 14 for additiondbimmation on
business segments, including Elimination of Duaddit

Three months ended March 31,

2016 2015 % change

Net Oper. Net Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Income Sales Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $ 2576 $ 617 $ 2,656 $ 596 (3.0% 3.6%
Safety and Graphics 1,412 345 1,372 335 2.9% 3.1%
Health Care 1,383 455 1,329 408 4.0% 11.5%
Electronics and Energy 1,144 208 1,324 285 (13.6)% (26.8%
Consumer 1,049 238 1,048 240 0.1% (1.2%
Corporate and Unallocated 1 (41) 2 (200 — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (156 (34 (153 (34) — —
Total Company $ 7,409 $ 1,788 $ 7,578 $ 1,730 (2.2)% 3.3%
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Three months ended March 31, 2016

Organic

Worldwide local- Total

Sales Change Analysis currency sales

By Business Segment sales Acquisitions Divestidg Translation change
Industrial (1.9% 2.0% (0.1% (3.0% (3.0%
Safety and Graphics 294 6.9% (2.4)% (4.0)0% 2.9%
Health Care 6.2% 0.9% — % (3.1% 4.0%
Electronics and Energy 11.7)% %- —% (1.99% (13.6)%
Consumer 2.8% — % — % (2.7% 0.1%
Total Company (0.8)% 2% (0.5)% (3.0)% (2.2)%

Sales in U.S. dollars in the first quarter of 2@E@reased 2.2 percent, substantially impacted fieydfio currency
translation, which reduced sales by 3.0 percertalTommpany organic local-currency sales (whiclhides organic
volume impacts plus selling price impacts) decréds8 percent, with growth in Health Care, Consyraed Safety and
Graphics more than offset by declines in Industaat Electronics and Energy. Four of 3M’s fiveibhass segments
achieved operating income margins in excess ofe22emt. Worldwide operating income margins forftret quarter of
2016 were 24.1 percent, compared to 22.8 percetiédirst quarter of 2015.

3M continued to invest for long-term success thiotgsearch and development, commercialization aqdisitions.
Acquisitions increased first-quarter sales growgtt2ld percent, which related to acquisitions cloge2015. In August
2015, 3M (Safety and Graphics Business) acquirgiit@léSafety, a leading global provider of fall protion
equipment. In August 2015, 3M (Industrial Businessp acquired Membrana, a leading provider of omiorous
membranes and modules for filtration in life scesidndustrial and specialty segments. In Marctb28M (Health
Care Business) acquired Ivera Medical Corp., a fisaburer of health care products that disinfect prutect devices
used for access into a patient’s bloodstream. Refliote 2 in the Consolidated Financial Stateman8&M'’s 2015
Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional detail.

Divestitures reduced first-quarter sales growt®Bypercent. As part of its portfolio managemewicpss, in the fourth
quarter of 2015, 3M (Safety and Graphics Busindsssted the license plate converting businessande and
substantially all of the library systems busindisghe first quarter of 2016, 3M completed the sHléhe remaining
portions of its library systems business. Alsathia first quarter of 2016, 3M (Industrial Busin€x®oup) divested the
assets of 3M’s pressurized polyurethane foam adégsiusiness (formerly known as Polyfoam). Thidrimss is a
provider of pressurized polyurethane foam adhefsirmulations and systems into the residential rpfcommercial
roofing and insulation and industrial foam segmémthe United States with annual sales of appraséty $20 million.
The Company recorded a pre-tax gain of $40 miliiothe first quarter of 2016 as a result of the &HlPolyfoam and
the remaining portion of the library systems busidrefer to Note 2 in the Consolidated Finandiale®nents for
additional detail.

Sales and operating income by geographic area:

Percent change information compares the first guaft2016 with the same period last year, unléissraise indicated.
From a geographic perspective, any references taAKfer to Europe, Middle East and Africa on a bimed basis.
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Three months ended March 31, 2016

Europe, Latin

United Asia Middle East  America/ Other

States Pacific & Africa Canada Unallocated Worldwide
Net sale (millions) $2926 $2213 $ 1579 $ 693 $ (2 $ 7,409

% of worldwide sales 39.5% 29.9% 21.3% 9.3% — 100.0%

Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 0.3% (5.4)% 0.5% (2.6)% — 1.7%
Price — (0.2 1.2 6.8 — 0.9
Organic local-currency sales 0.3 (5.6) 1.7 4.2 — (0.8)
Acquisitions 2.6 1.0 2.8 2.2 — 21
Divestitures (0.6) (0.2) (0.7) (0.3) — (0.5)
Translation — (2.6 (2.9 (5.7 — (3.0
Total sales change 23% (7.4)% 0.9% (9.6)% — (2.2)%

Sales in U.S. dollars increased 2.3 percent itthieed States and 0.9 percent in EMEA, while sdiedined 7.4
percent in Asia Pacific and 9.6 percent in Latinekima/Canada. Currency impacts reduced first quag&6
worldwide sales growth by 3.0 percent.

Worldwide selling prices rose 0.9 percent in thstfguarter of 2016. 3M has been raising sellinggsrin a number of
developing countries to help offset the impactwfency devaluations. 3M also continues to gengrastive selling
price changes across most of its businesses, liblogteorld-class innovation and strong new prodieet, both of
which are important elements of the 3M businessehod

Foreign currency translation reduced year-on-yakessin all major geographies, driven by a 15.¢g@rtranslation
impact in Latin America/Canada. In particular, Biro and Brazilian Real versus the U.S. dollar wesaeker compared
to first quarter 2015 by 1 percent and 25 peraespectively, while the Yen strengthened versuditi® dollar by 4
percent.

In Latin America/Canada, organic local-currencyesajrew 4.2 percent, led by Health Care at 9 pgraeed Industrial
at 8 percent. Organic local-currency sales incibdsgercent in Safety and Graphics, were flat gcEbnics and
Energy, and declined 1 percent in Consumer. Ordanal-currency sales grew 10 percent in Mexico 2mpetrcent in
Brazil.

In EMEA, organic local-currency sales increasedpkitent. Central/East Europe and Middle East/Afgrew 7
percent, and West Europe was up slightly. Orgadaltcurrency sales growth in EMEA was led by Heé&lare at 6
percent, while Safety and Graphics grew 2 perdedtstrial 1 percent, and Electronics and Energy fia. Organic
local-currency sales declined 5 percent in Consumer

In the United States, organic local-currency sghesvth was 0.3 percent, with growth of 4 percerthath Health Care
and Consumer, and growth in Safety and Graphi@pafrcent, largely offset by declines in both Hiegics and Energy
of 1 percent and Industrial of 5 percent. The (th8ustrial production index declined, which impattrowth in 3M’s
Industrial business.

In Asia Pacific, organic local-currency sales deati 5.6 percent. Organic local-currency sales dravets led by Health
Care at 11 percent, Consumer at 6 percent, antySafd Graphics at 4 percent, while Industrial ohed 4 percent.
Electronics and Energy declined 18 percent, as wadkmarket demand and excess channel inventagrisumer
electronics resulted in significant declines. Chitang Kong organic local-currency sales declingobttent and Japan
declined 8 percent. Excluding electronics, bothadiagnd China/Hong Kong organic local-currency sale flat.

Worldwide operating income increased 3.3 percetheérfirst quarter and operating income marginsevizat.1 percent,
an increase of 1.3 percentage points year-on-@arating income margins increased due to the awatibn of higher
selling prices and lower raw material costs, lodefined benefit pension and postretirement expearse productivity
related to the fourth quarter 2015 restructuringede factors were partially offset by acquisitiopacts, organic
volume declines, and utilization/other items. Refethe section entitled “Results of Operationg”fiather discussion.
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Managing currency risks:

As discussed above, the stronger U.S. dollar neggtimpacted sales and earnings in the first thneaths of 2016
compared to the same period last year. 3M utilzasmber of tools to hedge currency risk relateglatmings. 3M uses
natural hedges such as pricing, productivity, fanmdency and hard currency-indexed billings, arwliaing source of
supply. 3M also uses financial hedges to mitigateency risk. In the case of more liquid currencB hedges a
portion of its aggregate exposure, using a 12,r&banonth horizon, depending on the currency iestjon. In mid-
2014, 3M began extending its hedging tenor foratemnajor currencies, most notably the Euro and, benhas far as
24 months, and in the first quarter of 2015 extentthés to 36 months. Previously, 3M had limitedh&xige horizon to
12 months. For less liquid currencies, financialdieg is frequently more expensive with more linidas on tenor.
Thus this risk is largely managed via local operadl actions using natural hedging tools as digtliabove. In either
case, 3M’s hedging approach is designed to mitigatertion of foreign currency risk and reduce tibitg, ultimately
allowing time for 3M’s businesses to respond tongfes in the marketplace.

Financial condition:

3M generated $1.260 billion of operating cash flamthe first three months of 2016, an increas$1&0 million when
compared to the first three months of 2015. Refehé section entitled “Financial Condition and wijty” later in
MD&A for a discussion of items impacting cash flows

In February 2016, 3M’s Board of Directors authodizbe repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s oatgting common
stock, with no pre-established end date. In thet firee months of 2016, the Company purchase®@®hiflion of its
own stock, compared to $886 million of stock pusgsin the first three months of 2015. As of Ma3th2016,
approximately $9.6 billion remained available untter February 2016 authorization. The Company esgegurchase
$4 billion to $6 billion of its own stock in 2016 February 2016, 3M’s Board of Directors declaagfitst-quarter 2016
dividend of $1.11 per share, an increase of 8 perddnis marked the 58th consecutive year of diviimcreases for
3M.

3M’s debt to total capital ratio (total capital thefd as debt plus equity) was 49 percent at Maigt2816, and 48
percent at December 31, 2015. 3M currently has &nchedit rating with a stable outlook from Standl& Poor’s and
has an Al credit rating with a stable outlook frbfmody’s Investors Service. In March 2016, Moodysashgraded
3M'’s rating from Aa3 to Al and revised 3M'’s outlofskm negative to stable. The Company’s short-teating of P-1
was affirmed. This ratings action followed 3M’s anmcement of its new five-year plan for the pe26d 6 through
2020 in which the Company communicated its interfutther increase financial leverage. The Compganerates
significant ongoing cash flow and has proven actesapital markets funding throughout businesdesyc

3M expects to contribute approximately $200 milltors400 million of cash to its global defined bfingension and
postretirement plans in 2016. The Company doesian¢ a required minimum cash pension contributigigation for
its U.S. plans in 2016.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales:

Refer to the preceding sections entitled “Salesap@tating income by business segment” and “Sald®perating
income by geographic area” for discussion of salesge.
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Operating Expenses:

Three months ended

March 31,
(Percent of net sales) 2016 2015 Change
Cost of sales 49.6% 50.5% (0.9%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 20.2 20.6 (0.4)
Research, development and related expenses 6.1 6.1 —
Operating income 24.1% 22.8% 1.3%

3M expects global defined benefit pension and ptistment expense in 2016 (before settlementsqitments, special
termination benefits and other) to decrease bya@miately $320 million pre-tax when compared to 20dhich
impacts cost of sales; selling, general and adinatige expenses (SG&A); and research, developiedtrelated
expenses (R&D). Refer to the 3M’s 2015 Annual ReparForm 10-K (MD&A section entitled Critical Acaating
Estimates — Pension and Postretirement ObligatimsNote 11, Pension and Postretirement Benefitsipkar
background concerning the change to the spot giglde approach and other factors, which will resutiecreased
expenses in 2016. The year-on-year decrease inedefienefit pension and postretirement expensiddfirst quarter
was $75 million. The first three months of 2015iiiies the impact of a first-quarter 2015 Japaniparcurtailment
gain of $17 million.

The Company is investing in an initiative callecdsimess transformation, with these investments itipgcost of sales,
SG&A, and R&D. Business transformation encompagise®ngoing multi-year phased implementation oéaterprise
resource planning (ERP) system on a worldwide basisvell as changes in processes and internaiextservice
delivery across 3M.

Cost of Sales:
Cost of sales includes manufacturing, engineerimyfeeight costs.

Cost of sales as a percent of net sales was 48cémien the first quarter of 2016, compared td5tkrcent in the first
guarter of 2015. Cost of sales, measured as amesteales, decreased due to selling price ineseansd raw material
cost decreases. Selling prices increased netgedeson-year by 0.9 percent in the first quartdrilewraw material cost
deflation was favorable by approximately 4 pergarar-on-year. In addition, cost of sales decredsedcto lower
defined benefit pension and postretirement expésfsshich a portion impacts cost of sales).

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

SG&A decreased 4.5 percent in the first quartet0df6, when compared to the same period last yeagfiting from
divestiture gains (as discussed in Note 2), foreigmency translation, and productivity benefitgted to the fourth
quarter 2015 restructuring. In addition, lower defl benefit pension and postretirement expensditeth8G&A.
SG&A, measured as a percent of sales, was 20.2men€ sales in the first quarter of 2016 compaoe?i0.6 percent in
the first quarter of 2015.

Research, Development and Related Expenses:

R&D, measured as a percent of sales, was 6.1 gesteales for both the three months ended Mar¢t2816 and
2015. R&D in dollars decreased $13 million in thstfthree months of 2016 compared to the samegdaist year,
benefitting from foreign currency translation anwvér defined benefit pension and postretiremeneegp. 3M
continued to invest in its key growth initiativéis¢luding more R&D aimed at disruptive innovatiomgrams with the
potential to create entirely new markets and disexgsting markets.
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Operating Income:

3M uses operating income as one of its primaryriass segment performance measurement tools. Refer table
below for a reconciliation of operating income masgor the three months ended March 31, 2016 ¢e2605.

Three months ended

(Percent of net sales) March 31, 2016
Same period last year 22.8%
Increase/(decrease) in operating income marginiatue

Selling price and raw material impact 1.1
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 1.0
Productivity from restructuring 0.4
Strategic investments (0.2)
Foreign exchange impacts (0.1
Acquisitions (0.2)
Organic volume (0.3
Utilization and other (0.5)

Current period 24.1%

Operating income margins were 24.1 percent initseduarter of 2016, compared to 22.8 percerhénfirst quarter of
2015, an improvement of 1.3 percentage points. 8Micues to benefit from the combination of higkelling prices
and lower raw material costs, plus lower year-oarytefined benefit pension and postretirement esg@en addition to
productivity benefits related to the fourth qua2ed.5 restructuring. Items that reduced operaticgrine margins
included strategic investments, as 3M began to aakiens on its manufacturing footprint and inceshgrowth
investments across its businesses. Additional itéiaisreduced operating margins included foreigmency effects (net
of hedge gains), acquisition impacts related toit@afafety, Membrana, and Ivera Medical, and y@aiyear declines
in organic volume. Utilization and other includéa impact of lower asset utilization, particulanythe electronics and
industrial businesses, partially offset by divesgtgains in the quarter.

Interest Expense and Income:

Three months ended

March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Interest expense $ 47 $ 31
Interest income (5) 4
Total $ 42 3 27

Interest expense was higher in the first quart&0dft compared to the same period last year, ket to higher
average debt balances.

Provision for Income Taxes:

Three months ended
March 31,
(Percent of pre-tax income) 2016 2015

Effective tax rate 26.8% 29.5%

The effective tax rate for the first quarter of B0das 26.8 percent, compared to 29.5 percent ifirstequarter of 2015,
a decrease of 2.7 percentage points. This decvesdriven by a number of factors as referencedbire 6, including
the first quarter 2016 adoption of ASU No. 2016¢08cussed in Note 1). The Company is planningke further
global cash optimization actions, which will resalincreased tax expense over the remainder d6.284 a result, the
Company currently expects that its effective tae far total year 2016 will remain in the rangeapproximately 29.5 to
30.5 percent. Refer to Note 6 for additional disous.
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The effective tax rate can vary from quarter tortpradue to discrete items, such as the settleofantome tax audits,
changes in tax laws and employee share-based pageeunting; as well as recurring factors, sucthagyeographic
mix of income before taxes.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest:

Three months ended
March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015

Netincome attributable to noncontrolling interest $ 3 $ 2

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interesgtresents the elimination of the income or losghatable to non-3M
ownership interests in 3M consolidated entitiese piimary noncontrolling interest relates to 3Migntdimited, of
which 3M’s effective ownership is 75 percent.

Currency Effects:

3M estimates that year-on-year currency effectduding hedging impacts, decreased pre-tax incoyrepproximately
$50 million for the three months ended March 31L,&0T his estimate includes the effect of transtaprofits from local
currencies into U.S. dollars; the impact of curgefiectuations on the transfer of goods betweendgdrations in the
United States and abroad; and transaction gaingasds, including derivative instruments desigioeictduce foreign
currency exchange rate risks and any impacts frgapping Venezuelan bolivars into U.S. dollars. 3reates that
year-on-year derivative and other transaction gantslosses increased pre-tax income by approxigrdi® million

for the three months ended March 31, 2016.

Significant Accounting Policies:
Information regarding new accounting standardadfuded in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financiatedtents.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016408rovements to Employee Share-Based Payment Aaogun
which modifies certain accounting aspects for staged payments to employees including, among etherents, the
accounting for income taxes and forfeitures, as agtlassifications in the statement of cash floWwse Company early
adopted ASU No. 2016-09 as of January 1, 2016 peatvely beginning January 1, 2016, excess tax
benefits/deficiencies have been reflected as indaméenefit/expense in the statement of incomeltiag in an $81
million tax benefit in the quarter ended March 3216. 3M typically experiences the largest volurhstock option
exercises and restricted stock unit vestings irfiteequarter of its fiscal year. Refer to Notéot additional detail.
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PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Disclosures related to 3M’s business segmentsrargded in Note 14. The reportable segments aredtnil; Safety
and Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Eneaggl; Consumer.

Corporate and Unallocated:

In addition to these five operating business sedgs@&M assigns certain costs to “Corporate and [doated”, which is
presented separately in the preceding businessesggtable and in Note 14. Corporate and Unallaciaigludes a
variety of miscellaneous items, such as corporatestment gains and losses, certain derivativesgaid losses, certain
insurance-related gains and losses, certain litigand environmental expenses, corporate restingtaharges and
certain under- or over-absorbed costs (e.g. pensiook-based compensation) that the Company magsehnot to
allocate directly to its business segments. Becthuse&ategory includes a variety of miscellaneiterss, it is subject to
fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Corporate and Unallocated operating income initisé quarter of 2016 when compared to the sameg@daist year
improved by $59 million, impacted by lower definleenefit pension and postretirement expense. 3Miael benefit
pension and postretirement expense in the firsttguaf 2016 when compared to the same periodyksst decreased in
total by $75 million, with $63 million of this deease allocated to Corporate and Unallocated.

Operating Business Segments:

Information related to 3M’s business segmentsHerfirst quarter of both 2016 and 2015 is preseintéke tables that
follow. Organic local-currency sales include botgamic volume impacts plus selling price impactsgdéisition
impacts, if any, are measured separately for tisetfivelve months post-transaction. The divestitomgacts, if any,
foreign currency translation impacts and total saleange are also provided for each business seghmgnreferences
to EMEA relate to Europe, Middle East and Africaaboombined basis.
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Industrial Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 2576 $ 2,656
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency (2.9% 2.6%
Acquisitions 2.0 —
Divestitures (0.1 —
Translation (3.0) (7.0
Total sales change (3.0% (4.4%
Operating income (millions) $ 617 $ 596
Percent change 3.6% (3.4)%
Percent of sales 23.9% 22.4%

The Industrial segment serves a broad range ofetgr&uch as automotive original equipment manufac{OEM)

and automotive aftermarket (auto body shops aradl)etlectronics, appliance, paper and printiragkaging, food and
beverage, and construction. Industrial productldetapes, a wide variety of coated, non-woventzontied abrasives,
adhesives, advanced ceramics, sealants, specialéyiais, 3M purification (filtration products),odure systems for
personal hygiene products, acoustic systems predaicti components and products that are used mahefacture,
repair and maintenance of automotive, marine, @irend specialty vehicles. 3M is also a leadirapgl supplier of
precision grinding technology serving customerthmarea of hard-to-grind precision applicationmaustrial,
automotive, aircraft and cutting tools. 3M develapsl produces advanced technical ceramics for ddingn
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, satatustrial, electronics and defense industries.

First Quarter 2016 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $2.6 billion, down p&rcent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currencesalecreased 1.9
percent, acquisitions added 2.0 percent, divesttoeduced sales by 0.1 percent, and foreign ayteanslation
reduced sales by 3.0 percent. The U.S industraymtion index was down in the first quarter, as &witinued to
experience softness across Industrial.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in automotive OEM, automotive aftermiréed 3M purification.
» Sales declined in abrasive systems, industrial sidée and tapes, and aerospace commercial traasport
» Sales also declined in advanced materials, prigndtie to ongoing weakness in the oil and gas enttetsa
» Geographically, sales increased 8 percent in Latierica/Canada and 1 percent in EMEA, while Asiaifka
declined 4 percent and the United States declinger&ent.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
» Acquisition sales growth related to the August 2@t§uisition of Membrana, a leading provider of
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothinlife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme
« 3M completed its sale of the assets of 3M’s présedmolyurethane foam adhesives business (fornkedyvn
as Polyfoam) in January 2016 as discussed in Note 2

Operating income:
* Operating income margins increased by 1.5 percergamts to 23.9 percent, helped by fourth qua@drs
restructuring actions, and lower raw material costs
* In addition, the gain on sale of the Polyfoam bes@&was partially offset by acquisition impactsijaluh
resulted in a net operating income margin benéfit b percentage points.
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Safety and Graphics Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 1412 $ 1,372
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 2.4% 4.1%
Acquisitions 6.9 —
Divestitures (2.4 —
Translation (4.0) (7.7)
Total sales change 2.9% (3.6%
Operating income (millions) $ 345 % 335
Percent change 3.1% 5.3%
Percent of sales 24.5% 24.4%

The Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad cdmgarkets that increase the safety, securitypaoductivity of
people, facilities and systems. Major product dffgs include personal protection products, sucteggiratory, hearing,
eye and fall protection equipment; traffic safetgl @ecurity products, including border and cividggty solutions;
commercial solutions, including commercial graptshseting and systems, architectural design sokifior surfaces,
and cleaning and protection products for commegrstdblishments; and roofing granules for asplhdtigses.

First Quarter 2016 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $1.4 billamincrease of 2.9 percent in U.S. dollars. Orgkrual-currency sales
increased 2.4 percent, and foreign currency trioslaeduced sales by 4.0 percent. Acquisitionseddsi9 percent,
while divestitures reduced sales by 2.4 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by roofing granules, commésailutions, and personal safety, while sales dedlin
traffic safety and security.
e Sales increased 4 percent in Asia Pacific, 2 peéiodroth the United States and EMEA, and 1 peraehatin
America/Canada.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* Acquisition sales growth reflects the acquisitigrCapital Safety in August 2015. Capital Safetg ieading
global provider of fall protection equipment.
* Inthe fourth quarter of 2015, 3M divested its fise plate converting business in France and sutzdtaiall of
its library systems business. In the first quanfe2016, 3M divested the remainder of the libraygtesms
business as discussed in Note 2.

Operating income:
*  Operating income totaled $345 million, up 3.1 patce
e Operating income margins were 24.5 percent of satespared to 24.4 percent in the first quarte2Qif5,
benefiting from higher selling prices and lower raaterial costs.
» Divestiture gains, partially offset by acquisitimnpacts, resulted in a net operating income mabogimefit of
0.3 percentage points.
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Health Care Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 1383 $ 1,329
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 6.2% 3.0%
Acquisitions 0.9 0.7
Translation 3.1 (7.0
Total sales change 4.0% (3.3)%
Operating income (millions) $ 455  $ 408
Percent change 11.5% (4.3%
Percent of sales 32.9% 30.7%

The Health Care segment serves markets that inchadcal clinics and hospitals, pharmaceuticalataleand
orthodontic practitioners, health information sysse and food manufacturing and testing. Produaissanvices
provided to these and other markets include meditdlsurgical supplies, skin health and infectimvention products,
inhalation and transdermal drug delivery systeme, @are solutions (dental and orthodontic produttsalth
information systems, and food safety products. dffe in the third quarter of 2015, the Companyrfed the Oral Care
Solutions Division, which combined the former 3MREESand 3M Unitek divisions.

First Quarter 2016 results:

Health Care sales totaled $1.4 billion, an incredge0 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-eay sales increased
6.2 percent, acquisitions added 0.9 percent, amidgio currency translation reduced sales by 3.&quer

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales growth was broad-based across the Healthp@arfelio, led by food safety, and health inforiat
systems. Health Care’s larger businesses also sheeliel growth, including critical and chronic caigfection
prevention, and oral care solutions.

« On a geographic basis, sales increased 11 percésta Pacific, 9 percent in Latin America/Canagipercent
in EMEA, and 4 percent in the United States.

» In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales grew 13 percent, with particular gftiein
China/Hong Kong, Mexico, and Russia.

» 3M continues to increase investments across thiedsses to drive efficient growth into the future.

Acquisitions:
* Acquisition sales growth related to the March 2@liEchase of Ivera Medical Corp. Ivera is a manuifigetof
health care products that disinfect and protecicegswsed for access into a patient’s bloodstream.

Operating income:
e Operating income increased 11.5 percent to $45%mil
e Operating income margins were 32.9 percent, conp@ar80.7 percent in the same period last yearedrby
the combination of higher selling prices and lovax material costs, plus organic volume increases.
» Acquisitions had a minimal impact on operating imgomargins.

In September 2015, 3M announced that it would expétrategic alternatives for its Health Informat®ystems

Division (HIS), which included spinning-off, sellinor retaining the business. In February 201éofohg an in-depth
exploration of strategic alternatives, the Compangounced its intent to retain and further inveddiS.
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Electronics and Energy Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 1,144  $ 1,324
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency (11.7% 6.0%
Divestitures — (0.9)
Translation (1.9 (4.0
Total sales change (13.6)% 1.1%
Operating income (millions) $ 208 % 285
Percent change (26.8% 24.3%
Percent of sales 18.2% 21.5%

The Electronics and Energy segment includes salsifibat improve the dependability, cost-effectis=nand
performance of electronic devices; electrical patguincluding infrastructure protection; telecommuations networks;
and power generation and distribution. This sege@héctronics solutions include optical film satuts for the
electronic display industry; high-performance flumhd abrasives; high-temperature and display tép&ible circuits,
which use electronic packaging and interconnedtgohnology; and touch systems products. This setjisnemergy
solutions include pressure sensitive tapes andggslectrical insulation; infrastructure produttat provide both
protection and detection solutions; a wide arrafjlr-optic and copper-based telecommunicatiostesys; and
renewable energy component solutions for the soldrwind power industries.

First Quarter 2016 results:

Electronics and Energy sales totaled $1.1 billdown 13.6 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic locakency sales
declined 11.7 percent, and foreign currency traiosiaeduced sales by 1.9 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales decreased 18 percent in 3M'’s electronicsegtlausinesses, with declines in both electroniaterials
solutions and display materials and systems. Tdiidite was due to a combination of factors, inaigdoft
end market demand, elevated channel inventoryaastdhllenging year-on-year comparison.

e Sales decreased approximately 1 percent in 3M’gggrelated businesses, as declines in renewaklggn
and telecommunications were partially offset byvgtoin electrical markets.

» On a geographic basis, sales were flat in both EMEAIn America/Canada, and the United States.sSale
declined 18 percent in Asia Pacific, where 3M'sclenics business is concentrated.

Divestitures:
» 3M completed the sale of its static control bussneslanuary 2015.

Operating income:
e Operating income decreased 26.8 percent to $20@mil
e Operating income margins were 18.2 percent compar2d.5 percent in the same period last yeapwasn
organic volume and foreign currency effects werng partially offset by lower raw material costs.

In late April 2016, 3M announced it is taking acao better align the Electronics and Energy kassiio market

realities. These actions will reduce approximag89 positions worldwide, with the majority of theductions on the
electronics side of the business. As a result, 3pets to incur a second-quarter expense of appedgly $20 million.
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Consumer Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2016 2015
Sales (millions) $ 1,049 $ 1,048
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 2.8% 2.1%
Translation (2.7) (5.0)
Total sales change 0.1% (2.9%
Operating income (millions) $ 238 $ 240
Percent change (1.1)% 5.2%
Percent of sales 22.7% 22.9%

The Consumer segment serves markets that inclugrioeer retail, office retail, office business tsimess, home
improvement, drug and pharmacy retail, and othekets. Products in this segment include office $yippoducts,
stationery products, construction and home impramrproducts (do-it-yourself), home care prodyatefective
material products, certain consumer retail perseafdty products, and consumer health care praducts

First Quarter 2016 results:

Consumer sales totaled $1.0 billion, up 0.1 peroebkS. dollars. Organic local-currency sales éased 2.8 percent,
and foreign currency translation reduced sales.By@&rcent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by construction and home irgm@nt, plus consumer health care.
» Stationery and office supplies, and home care sedes flat.
» On a geographic basis, sales increased 6 percésiarPacific, and 4 percent in the United Statdsle sales
in Latin America/Canada declined 1 percent, and BMEclined 5 percent.

Operating income:
»  Operating income was $238 million, down 1.1 perdrmrh the same period last year.
» Operating income margins were 22.7 percent, doights} from 22.9 percent in the same period lastrye
impacted by increased advertising and merchandisivestments to drive growth.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

3M continues its transition to a better-optimizegbital structure and is adding leverage at a medsueice. The strength
and stability of 3M’s business model and strong ftash flow capability, together with proven cdpitarkets access,
enable the Company to implement this strategy.dting in 3M’s businesses to drive organic growtmaéns the first
priority for capital deployment, including reseawnind development, capital expenditures, and comatzation
capability. Investment in organic growth will bepplemented by complementary acquisitions. 3M wWilbacontinue to
return cash to shareholders through dividends hacksepurchases. Sources for cash availabilittyarinited States,
such as ongoing cash flow from operations and adoesapital markets, have historically been sigfficto fund
dividend payments to shareholders and share repseshas well as funding U.S. acquisitions andr dtives as
needed. For those international earnings considerbd reinvested indefinitely, the Company curdseh&s no plans or
intentions to repatriate these funds for U.S. oij@na. However, if these international funds aredesl for operations in
the U.S., 3M would be required to accrue and p&y. thxes to repatriate them. See Note 8 in 3M’'$20inual Report
on Form 10-K for further information on earningssimlered to be reinvested indefinitely.

3M’s primary short-term liquidity needs are mettihgh cash on hand and U.S. commercial paper issaa8i

believes it will have continuous access to the cencial paper market. 3M’s commercial paper progpammits the
Company to have a maximum of $3 billion outstandiitly a maximum maturity of 397 days from datessfuance.
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Net Debt:

The Company defines net debt as total debt lestothkof cash, cash equivalents and current ang-term marketable
securities. 3M considers net debt and its compartenbe an important indicator of liquidity anduiding measure of
capital structure strategy. Net debt is not defineder U.S. generally accepted accounting prinsipted may not be
computed the same as similarly titled measures bg@&dher companies. The following table providesdebt as of
March 31, 2016, and December 31, 2015.

March 31, December 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Total Debt $ 11,139 $ 10,797
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and marketablatsscu 1,528 1,925
Net Debt $ 9,611 $ 8,872

In the first three months of 2016, net debt inceeldsy $0.7 billion to a net debt balance of $916dni. The first three
months 2016 net debt increase was driven by comahgraper issuances of approximately $400 milliaraddition to a
decrease in cash, cash equivalents and marketxhlaties of approximately $400 million. Specifictians related to
cash, cash equivalents, and marketable secuiiti@sldition to debt, are discussed further below.

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities:

At March 31, 2016, 3M had $1.5 billion of cash, taguivalents and marketable securities, of whpgreximately
$1.4 billion was held by the Company’s foreign sdiasies and approximately $90 million was heldthg United
States. Of the $1.4 billion held internationallySUdollar-based cash, cash equivalents and mal&edacurities totaled
$140 million, or 10 percent, which was investednoney market funds, asset-backed securities, agmmyities,
corporate medium-term note securities and othdr-figplity fixed income securities. At December 2215, cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities held by thapgany’s foreign subsidiaries and by the UnitedeStéotaled
approximately $1.7 billion and $200 million, respeely.

Total debt:

The Company’s total debt was $342 million higheMatch 31, 2016 when compared to December 31, 20it5 the
increase primarily due to approximately $400 millimf commercial paper issuances in the first quarft@016. Debt
issuances in 2015 included the May 2015 and Au2QEb debt issuances (approximately $3.4 billiomjaddition to
commercial paper issuances ($800 million). The A¥5 debt issuances had an aggregated principalregrnd1.750
billion Euros, or approximately $1.9 billion atissice date exchange rates. The August 2015 dehnisss had an
aggregated principal amount of $1.5 billion. Thesgth of 3M’s capital structure and significangomg cash flows
provide 3M proven access to capital markets. Addilly, the Company’s maturity profile is staggetedhelp ensure
refinancing needs in any given year are reasonalgeoportion to the total portfolio. 3M currenthas an AA- credit
rating with a stable outlook from Standard & Poarsl has an Al credit rating with a stable outliyokn Moody’s
Investors Service. In March 2016, Moody's downgrh@®1's rating from Aa3 to Al and revised 3M's outlofrom
negative to stable. The Company’s short-term ratiinig-1 was affirmed. This ratings action follow&d's
announcement of its new five-year plan for theqa£016 through 2020 in which the Company commued#s
intent to further increase financial leverage.

Effective May 16, 2014, the Company updated itslAkivown seasoned issuer” shelf registration statetywhich
registers an indeterminate amount of debt or equatyrities for future sales. This replaced 3M&vus shelf
registration dated August 5, 2011. In June 2014pmection with the May 16, 2014 shelf registnati8M re-
commenced its medium-term notes program (Seriem@@r which 3M may issue, from time to time, u$obillion
aggregate principal amount of notes. Included i $9 billion are $8.17 billion (utilizing the foign exchange rate
applicable at the time of issuance for the Eurcod@nated debt) of notes previously issued in 2@D12, 2014, and
2015 as part of Series F.
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In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exihg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilitgxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 billion five-year revolving crefiitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreem includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lenders’ discretion), lging the total
facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving crediacility is undrawn at March 31, 2016. Under the7g3billion credit
agreement, the Company is required to maintaiBB8 DA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlgquarter at not
less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as defingbe agreement) as the ratio of consolidated EBAT DA for the four
consecutive quarters then ended to total intesgstrese on all funded debt for the same period. Atd# 31, 2016, this
ratio was approximately 51 to 1. Debt covenantaataestrict the payment of dividends. Apart frdra tommitted
facilities, $236 million in stand-alone lettersaédit and $17 million in bank guarantees were &lsoed and
outstanding at March 31, 2016. These lines of ta@i utilized in connection with normal businest\aties.

Balance Sheet:

3M'’s strong balance sheet and liquidity provide @@npany with significant flexibility to take adviage of future
investment opportunities. The Company will continoiénvest in its operations to drive both orgagriowth and
acquisition opportunities.

Various assets and liabilities, including cash sinort-term debt, can fluctuate significantly froramth to month
depending on short-term liquidity needs. Workinpita (defined as current assets minus currentliligls) totaled
$3.696 billion at March 31, 2016, compared with888 billion at December 31, 2015, a decrease o $iiflion.
Current asset balance changes decreased workiitgldap$112 million, driven by decreases in cassh equivalents,
and other current assets, which were partiallyedffy increases in accounts receivable, inventosied current
marketable securities. Current liability balancarfes decreased working capital by $60 milliorgear due to
increases in accrued income taxes and short-tebtn piartially offset by decreases in accrued p&yaskcounts payable,
and other current liabilities.

The Company uses various working capital meashegplace emphasis and focus on certain workingalassets and
liabilities. These measures are not defined und8r generally accepted accounting principles ang moabe computed
the same as similarly titted measures used by atbrmpanies. One of the primary working capital rueas 3M uses is
a combined index, which includes accounts rece&/débizentories and accounts payable. This combimdek (defined
as current quarter net sales multiplied by fouriddid by ending net accounts receivable plus irorées less accounts
payable) was 4.5 at March 31, 2016 compared ta¥¥cember 31, 2015. Receivables increased $38&rmor 8.0
percent, compared with December 31, 2015, as hidlaech 2016 sales compared to December 2015 saheskoited

to this increase. Currency translation impactsdased accounts receivable by $86 million. Inveasoificreased $109
million compared with December 31, 2015, or 3.1cpat. Currency translation increased inventorie$ by million.
Accounts payable decreased $113 million when coetpaith December 31, 2015, with the majority redai@ changes
in business activity.

Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating, investing and financaogjvities are provided in the tables that folldadividual amounts
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exdideffects of acquisitions, divestitures and excje rate impacts
on cash and cash equivalents, which are presestsgparate line items within the statement of fiasvs. Thus, the
amounts presented in the following operating, itimgsand financing activities tables reflect chamgebalances from
period to period adjusted for these effects.

As discussed in Note 1, 3M adopted ASU No. 201@fdective January 1, 2016, on a prospective basis.new
guidance impacts classifications within the statetnoé cash flows by no longer requiring inclusidreacess tax
benefits as both a hypothetical cash outflow wittash flows from operating activities and hypottedtcash inflow
within cash flows from financing activities. Insteaxcess tax benefits would be classified in dpegactivities in the
same manner as other cash flows related to incarest
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Three months ended

March 31,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 1,278 $ 1,201
Depreciation and amortization 356 339
Company pension contributions (55) (90]
Company postretirement contributions (1) (1)
Company pension expense 47 99
Company postretirement expense 12 35
Stock-based compensation expense 144 138
Income taxes (deferred and accrued income taxes) 296 144
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — (101
Accounts receivable (245 (296)
Inventories (37) (231
Accounts payable (116 56
Other — net (419 (313

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,260 $ 1,080

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctusitgnificantly from period to period, as pensiondimg decisions, tax
timing differences and other items can significaittipact cash flows.

In the first three months of 2016, cash flows pded by operating activities increased $180 miltompared to the
same period last year, with this increase primatilg to lower cash taxes, plus a year-on-year ivgnent in
inventories and accounts receivable, with theseaatgppartially offset by declines in accounts pégiabhe combination
of accounts receivable, inventories and accountalga increased working capital by $398 milliortte first three
months of 2016, similar to the working capital eases of $371 million in the first three month2@15. Additional
discussion on working capital changes is providadier in the “Financial Condition and Liquidity&stion.

Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure):

In addition to net cash provided by operating &iitig, the Company believes free cash flow and ¢eesh flow
conversion are useful measures of performance. $# these measures as an indication of the streftita Company
and its ability to generate cash. Free cash flovfege cash flow conversion are not defined und&:. denerally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Therefdneytshould not be considered a substitute for ircontash flow
data prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and maaype comparable to similarly titted measures usedther
companies. 3M defines free cash flow as net casViged by operating activities less purchases operty, plant and
equipment (which is classified as an investingvigii. It should not be inferred that the entiredrcash flow amount is
available for discretionary expenditures. 3M dedifree cash flow conversion as free cash flow @igidly net income
attributable to 3M. The first quarter of each yisatypically 3M’s seasonal low for free cash flomdafree cash flow
conversion. Below find a recap of free cash flowtfe three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.

Three months ended

March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 1,260 $ 1,080
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (314) (291
Free Cash Flow $ 946 $ 789
Free Cash Flow Conversion 74% 66 %
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Three months ended

March 31,

(Millions) 2016 2015
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) $ (314, $ (291,
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 18 4
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 4) (150
Purchases and proceeds from maturities and sataddetable

securities and investments, net (61) 414
Proceeds from sale of businesses 56 19
Other investing activities 25 4
Net cash used in investing activit $ (280 $ —

Capital spending was $314 million in the first #nronths of 2016, compared to $291 million in ti&t three months
of 2015. The Company expects 2016 capital speridibhg approximately $1.3 billion to $1.5 billion.

Investments in property, plant and equipment engldeith across many diverse markets, helping tat ipesluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency.iBésts in renewal and maintenance programs, wectain to

cost reduction, cycle time, maintaining and rengwdarrent capacity, pollution reduction, and compdie. Costs related
to maintenance, ordinary repairs, and certain dteers are expensed. 3M also invests in new groapacity, both
through expansion of current facilities and by dinig new facilities. 3M also invests in corporabdratory facilities
and information technology (IT).

Refer to Note 2 for information on acquisitions atidestitures. The Company is actively consideadditional
acquisitions, investments and strategic allianaed,from time to time may also divest certain besses. Proceeds
from sale of businesses in the first three monft0a6 relate to the divestiture of the assethefdressurized
polyurethane foam adhesives business (formerly knasvPolyfoam) business within the Industrial bestnsegment
and the completion of the divestiture of the Lilgrausiness within the Safety and Graphics busiaegment.

Purchases of marketable securities and investragatproceeds from maturities and sale of marketsddarities and
investments are primarily attributable to assetkbdcsecurities, certificates of deposit/time deggosiommercial paper,
and other securities, which are classified as alibgtfor-sale. Refer to Note 7 for more detailswt8M’s diversified
marketable securities portfolio. Purchases of imaests include additional survivor benefit insuranglus cost method
and equity investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Three months ended

March 31,
(Millions) 2016 2015
Change in short-term debt — net $ 138 $ 4
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) — —
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days — —
Total cash change in debt $ 138 % 4)
Purchases of treasury stock (1,227 (886
Proceeds from issuances of treasury stock pursoatdck option and benefit
plans 357 309
Dividends paid to stockholders (672 (652
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — 101
Other — net (22) (22)
Net cash used in financing activit $ (1,426 $ (1,154)
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Total debt at March 31, 2016 was $11.1 billion fugon $10.8 billion at year-end 2015, with the irecse primarily due
to commercial paper issuances (approximately $4iliiom) partially offset by repayments and borroginby
international subsidiaries. Total debt was 49 paroétotal capital (total capital is defined adptplus equity) at March
31, 2016, compared to 48 percent of total capitgear-end 2015.

Repurchases of common stock are made to suppo@tahgany’s stock-based employee compensation plach$or
other corporate purposes. In February 2016, 3Mar8af Directors authorized the repurchase of upl billion of
3M'’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-estéigicsend date. In the first three months of 2016 Gbmpany
purchased $1.227 billion of its own stock, compare#i886 million in the first three months of 20THe Company
expects full-year 2016 gross share repurchasedwvith the range of $4 billion to $6 billion. Fopna information, refer
to the table titled “Issuer Purchases of Equityugigies” in Part I, Item 2. The Company does ntilize derivative
instruments linked to the Company’s stock.

Cash dividends paid to shareholders totaled $6Hmin the first three months of 2016, compare®652 million in
the first three months of 2015. 3M has paid divitkeeach year since 1916. In February 2016, 3M’'sdBofDirectors
declared a first-quarter 2016 dividend of $1.11gkere, an increase of 8 percent. This is equivébeain annual
dividend of $4.44 per share and marked the 58tsanutive year of dividend increases for 3M.

Other cash flows from financing activities may i various other items, such as distributions teates of
noncontrolling interests, changes in cash overdr@tinces, and principal payments for capital kease

CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including “Maeaent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbadiand
Results of Operations” in Part I, Item 2, contdmsvard-looking statements within the meaning @& Brivate
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Companay also make forward-looking statements in iotbports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiomaterials delivered to shareholders and in prelesses. In
addition, the Company’s representatives may franetio time make oral forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future evantstypically address the Company’s expected futustness and
financial performance. Words such as “plan,” “exge@im,” “believe,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “forecast” ad other words and terms of similar meaning, tyiprddentify such
forward-looking statements. In particular, thesgude, among others, statements relating to:

» the Company’s strategy for growth, future reveneeasnings, cash flow, uses of cash and other mesasdir
financial performance, and market position,

» worldwide economic and capital markets conditiessh as interest rates, foreign currency exchaaigs,r
financial conditions of our suppliers and customarsl natural and other disasters or climate chaffgeting
the operations of the Company or its suppliersarsiomers,

* new business opportunities, product developmeiot fatture performance or results of current or apited
products,

» the scope, nature or impact of acquisitions, iatalliances and divestitures,

» the outcome of contingencies, such as legal andatgy proceedings,

« future levels of indebtedness, common stock re@ges and capital spending,

« future availability of and access to credit markets

e pension and postretirement obligation assumptiodsfature contributions,

e asset impairments,

» tax liabilities,

« information technology security, and

» the effects of changes in tax, environmental aheérofws and regulations in the United States dhero
countries in which we operate.

The Company assumes no obligation to update oseeuiy forward-looking statements.
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Forward-looking statements are based on certaimgssons and expectations of future events andigr¢imat are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual futwsults and trends may differ materially from histak results or those
reflected in any such forward-looking statementsetheling on a variety of factors. Important inforioatas to these
factors can be found in this document, includimgpag others, “Management’s Discussion and Analyslsinancial
Condition and Results of Operations” under the hregedof “Overview,” “Financial Condition and Liquity” and
annually in “Critical Accounting Estimates.” Disaisn of these factors is incorporated by referdrma Part II, Item
1A, “Risk Factors,” of this document, and shouldcbasidered an integral part of Part I, ltem 2, Hdgement'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebkults of Operations.” For additional informatimmcerning
factors that may cause actual results to vary n@diiefrom those stated in the forward-looking staents, see our
reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with thEGfrom time to time.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alput Market Risk.

In the context of Item 3, 3M is exposed to marksit due to the risk of loss arising from adversanges in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contyrquiies. Changes in those factors could impaetQbmpany’s
results of operations and financial condition. &aliscussion of sensitivity analysis related tséhiypes of market
risks, refer to Part Il, Iltem 7A, Quantitative aQdalitative Disclosures About Market Risk, in 3N2815 Annual
Report on Form 10-K. There have been no materehgés in information that would have been providettie context
of Item 3 from the end of the preceding year uvtiirch 31, 2016. However, the Company does provgie r
management discussion in various places in thigt&uy Report on Form 10-Q, primarily in the Detlives note.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

a. The Company carried out an evaluation, undestipervision and with the participation of its mg@aent, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial iodfr, of the effectiveness of the design and opmratf the
Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures’d@ed in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) avefand of the
period covered by this report. Based upon thatuatin, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fio@h Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts@ncedures are effective.

b. There was no change in the Company’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durihg Company’s
most recently completed fiscal quarter that hasnaty affected, or is reasonably likely to maddisi affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

The Company is implementing an enterprise resopla@ning (“ERP”) system on a worldwide basis, whiglkexpected
to improve the efficiency of certain financial aredated transaction processes. The gradual impletien is expected
to occur in phases over the next several yearsimpiementation of a worldwide ERP system will likaffect the
processes that constitute our internal control éimancial reporting and will require testing fdfextiveness.

The Company completed implementation with respeeléments of certain processes/sub-processeamnitedi
subsidiaries/locations and will continue to rolt e ERP system over the next several years. Asamy new
information technology application we implementsthpplication, along with the internal controlsofinancial
reporting included in this process, was appropisiatensidered within the testing for effectiven@sth respect to the
implementation in these instances. We concludegagsof its evaluation described in the above grayghs, that the
implementation of the ERP system in these circunt&ts has not materially affected our internal adrdver financial
reporting.
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3M COMPANY
FORM 10-Q
For the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2016
PART Il. Other Information

Iltem 1. Legal Proceedings.

Discussion of legal matters is incorporated byrexiee from Part I, Item 1, Note 12, “Commitmentd &ontingencies
of this document, and should be considered anralk@grt of Part Il, ltem 1, “Legal Proceedings.”

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Provided below is a cautionary discussion of whatbelieve to be the most important risk factordiapple to the
Company. Discussion of these factors is incorpdrhtereference into and considered an integralgfdpart I, ltem 2,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahditions and Results of Operations.”

* Results are impacted by the effects of, and cearmg, worldwide economic, political, and capitednkets conditions.
The Company operates in more than 70 countrieslarides approximately 60 percent of its revenuesifoutside the
United States. The Company’s business is subjegibtmal competition and geopolitical risks and rbayadversely
affected by factors in the United States and othentries that are beyond its control, such asei@eonomic growth,
disruptions in financial markets, economic downsuimthe form of either contained or widespreassnary
conditions, inflation, elevated unemployment leyslaggish or uneven recovery, government defegiuction and
other austerity measures in specific countrieggions, or in the various industries in which tr@r®any operates;
social, political or labor conditions in specifiountries or regions; natural and other disastedimate change
affecting the operations of the Company or its@ongrs and suppliers; or adverse changes in th&abiiy and cost of
capital, interest rates, tax rates, tax laws, eharge control, ability to expatriate earnings atiar regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

* Change in the Company’s credit ratings could mase cost of fundinghe Company’s credit ratings are important to
3M’s cost of capital. The major rating agenciestirely evaluate the Company’s credit profile andigis debt ratings to
3M. This evaluation is based on a number of factetsch include financial strength, business andricial risk, as

well as transparency with rating agencies and tiraes of financial reporting. 3M currently has af-Aredit rating

with a stable outlook from Standard & Poor’s and ha Al credit rating with a stable outlook fromddig’s Investors
Service. In March 2016, Moody’s downgraded 3M’sngfrom Aa3 to Al and revised 3M’s outlook fromgagive to
stable. The Company’s short-term rating of P-1 affismed. This ratings action followed 3M’s annoeneent of its
new five-year plan for the period 2016 through 202&hich the Company communicated its intent tatfer increase
financial leverage. The Company’s credit ratingeehserved to lower 3M’s borrowing costs and faaftaccess to a
variety of lenders. The Company’s ongoing trangitio a better-optimized capital structure, finanedith additional
low-cost debt, could impact 3M’s credit rating hetfuture. Failure to maintain strong investmeiaidgrratings would
adversely affect the Company'’s cost of funding emald adversely affect liquidity and access to @dpharkets.

* The Company’s results are affected by competitavaditions and customer preferencBemand for the Company’s
products, which impacts revenue and profit margsaffected by (i) the development and timingted tntroduction of
competitive products; (ii) the Company’s resporssddwnward pricing to stay competitive; (iii) chasgn customer
order patterns, such as changes in the levelsvehtory maintained by customers and the timingust@mer purchases
which may be affected by announced price changesges in the Company’s incentive programs, octistomer’s
ability to achieve incentive goals; and (iv) chamgecustomers’ preferences for our products, ulioly the success of
products offered by our competitors, and changesigsiomer designs for their products that can affecdemand for
some of the Company’s products.

* Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationthose rates may affect the Company’s abilityetmize projected

growth rates in its sales and earninggecause the Company’s financial statements arendieated in U.S. dollars and
approximately 60 percent of the Company’s reveranesierived from outside the United States, the f@oy's results
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of operations and its ability to realize projectgdwth rates in sales and earnings could be adyaaffected if the U.S.
dollar strengthens significantly against foreigmrencies.

* The Company’s growth objectives are largely defari on the timing and market acceptance of its prauct
offerings, including its ability to continually rew its pipeline of new products and to bring thpseducts to market.
This ability may be adversely affected by difficedt or delays in product development, such asngility to identify
viable new products, obtain adequate intellectuaperty protection, or gain market acceptance of ppducts. There
are no guarantees that new products will proveetodmmercially successful.

* The Company’s future results are subject to fliations in the costs and availability of purchasednponents,
compounds, raw materials and energy, includingaail natural gas and their derivatives, due to shgets, increased
demand, supply interruptions, currency exchangesrigatural disasters and other factofsie Company depends on
various components, compounds, raw materials, aadhg (including oil and natural gas and their d&tives) supplied
by others for the manufacturing of its productss possible that any of its supplier relationshipsld be interrupted
due to natural and other disasters and other evemi® terminated in the future. Any sustainedriniption in the
Company’s receipt of adequate supplies could hawaterial adverse effect on the Company. In additichile the
Company has a process to minimize volatility in poment and material pricing, no assurance canuanghat the
Company will be able to successfully manage piieetdiations or that future price fluctuations ooghges will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company.

* Acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestituresd other unusual events resulting from portfolian@gement actions
and other evolving business strategies, and passitanizational restructuring could affect futuesults.The
Company monitors its business portfolio and orgatiinal structure and has made and may continugate@
acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures elmahges to its organizational structure. With eespo acquisitions,
future results will be affected by the Company’dighto integrate acquired businesses quickly abthin the
anticipated synergies.

* The Company’s future results may be affecteddéf@ompany generates fewer productivity improvesnain
estimatedThe Company utilizes various tools, such as Laarsma, and engages in ongoing global business
transformation. Business transformation is defiaed¢hanges in processes and internal/externateateiivery across
3M to move to more efficient business models tormep operational efficiency and productivity, whillowing 3M to
serve customers with greater speed and efficiefiuig. is enabled by the ongoing multi-year phasegulémentation of
an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system oorllwide basis. There can be no assurance thaf tie projected
productivity improvements will be realized.

* The Company employs information technology systensupport its business, including ongoing phased
implementation of an ERP system as part of busitnessformation on a worldwide basis over the resiteral years.
Security breaches and other disruptions to the Gaomgjs information technology infrastructure coufddrfere with the
Company'’s operations, compromise information bellogdo the Company and its customers, supplierd,amployees,
exposing the Company to liability which could adedy impact the Company’s business and reputaliothe ordinary
course of business, the Company relies on infoonagchnology networks and systems, some of whiehr@mnaged by
third parties, to process, transmit and store maat information, and to manage or support a ¥aeé business
processes and activities. Additionally, the Compemliects and stores certain data, including pedpri business
information, and may have access to confidentigessonal information in certain of our businegbes is subject to
privacy and security laws, regulations and custeimg@osed controls. Despite our cybersecurity mess(including
employee and third-party training, monitoring ofwerks and systems, and maintenance of backup ratelgive
systems) which are continuously reviewed and upggtathe Company’s information technology netwonkd a
infrastructure may still be vulnerable to damagdsruptions or shutdowns due to attack by hackets@aches,
employee error or malfeasance, power outages, dempiuuses, telecommunication or utility failureystems failures,
service providers including cloud services, natdisdsters or other catastrophic events. It isiplesr such
vulnerabilities to remain undetected for an extehgeriod, up to and including several years. Whigehave
experienced, and expect to continue to experighesg types of threats to the Company’s informatahnology
networks and infrastructure, none of them to datelad a material impact to the Company. Therebmagther
challenges and risks as the Company upgrades andiastlizes its ERP system on a worldwide basis.ugh events
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could result in legal claims or proceedings, ligpibr penalties under privacy laws, disruptiorojmerations, and
damage to the Company’s reputation, which coulceesbly affect the Company’s business. AlthoughGQbepany
maintains insurance coverage for various cyber#gaisks, there can be no guarantee that all amskssses incurred
will be fully insured.

* The Company'’s defined benefit pension and pastraent plans are subject to financial market rigtkat could
adversely impact our result§he performance of financial markets and discoatgs impact the Company’s funding
obligations under its defined benefit plans. Sigaifit changes in market interest rates, decrendée ifair value of plan
assets and investment losses on plan assets, landntdegislative or regulatory changes relatmgefined benefit plan
funding may increase the Company’s funding oblmaiand adversely impact its results of operatambscash flows.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedadnipus legal and regulatory proceedings and legainpliance risks,
including those involving product liability, antitst, intellectual property, environmental, the Ur8reign Corrupt
Practices Act and other anti-bribery, anti-corrugti, or other mattersThe outcome of these legal proceedings may
differ from the Company’s expectations becausetiteomes of litigation, including regulatory masieare often
difficult to reliably predict. Various factors oedelopments can lead the Company to change cwestintates of
liabilities and related insurance receivables wizgglicable, or make such estimates for mattengquely not
susceptible of reasonable estimates, such as ificagi judicial ruling or judgment, a significaséttlement, significant
regulatory developments or changes in applicable Aafuture adverse ruling, settlement or unfavéeatevelopment
could result in future charges that could have ter@ adverse effect on the Company’s resultspefrations or cash
flows in any particular period. For a more detaitiistussion of the legal proceedings involving@mmpany and the
associated accounting estimates, see the discusdidote 12 “Commitments and Contingencies” wittlie Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 2. Unreqistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Repurchases of 3M common stock are made to sugfpo@ompany’s stock-based employee compensatios plad
for other corporate purposes. In February 2014,s3B8ard of Directors authorized the repurchasgpabub12 billion
of 3M’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-ekstled end date. In February 2016, 3M’s Board aEBtors
replaced the Company’s February 2014 repurchasgaqrowith a new program. This new program authesrthe
repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s outstandamgnmon stock, with no pre-established end date.

Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities (registered pursuant to
Section 12 of the Exchange Act)

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value of
Total Number of ~ Shares that May
Shares Purchased Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of  Average Price as Part of Publicly  under the Plans

Shares Purchased Paid per Announced Plans  or Programs

Period (1) Share or Programs (2) (Millions)
January 1-31, 2016 4,867,20¢ $ 141.70 4,867,01¢ $ 77
February 1-29, 2016 1,593,234  153.47 1,590,500 $ 9,756
March 1-31, 2016 1,094,08: $ 162.58 1,091,29: $ 9,578
Total January 1-March 31, 2016 7,554,526 147.21 7,548,812 $ 9,578

(1) The total number of shares purchased includeshéjes purchased under the Board’s authorizatiessithed
above, and (ii) shares purchased in connectiontétexercise of stock options.

(2) The total number of shares purchased as part dichuannounced plans or programs includes shaneshaised
under the Board’s authorizations described above.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities— No matters require disclosure.

Item 4. Mine Safety DisclosuresPursuant to Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wa#&tReform and Consumer
Protection Act (the “Act”), the Company is requireddisclose, in connection with the mines it opesainformation
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters in its periodic reports filed with thEG. The information
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters required by Section 1503(a) of the Adhtluded in
Exhibit 95 to this quarterly report.

Item 5. Other Information. — No matters require disclosure.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibits. These exhibits are either incorporateddsgrence into this report or filed herewith wikfis report.
Exhibit numbers 10.1 through 10.29 are managenenitacts or compensatory plans or arrangements.
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Index to Exhibits:

(3) Articles of Incorporation and bylaws

(3.1) Certificate of incorporation, as amendedfadlay 11, 2007, is incorporated by reference fiaum
Form 8-K dated May 14, 2007.

(3.2) Amended and Restated Bylaws, as adoptefidsvember 10, 2015, are incorporated by referdram
our Form 8-K dated November 10, 2015.

(4) Instruments defining the rights of securitydes, including indentures:

(4.1) Indenture, dated as of November 17, 200@yden 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as successor trustee, with respeditits senior debt securities, is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated December 7, 2000.

(4.2)  First Supplemental Indenture, dated as lyf2®, 2011, to Indenture dated as of November2000,
between 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trusin@any, N.A., as successor trustee, with respect
to 3M’s senior debt securities, is incorporateddfgrence from our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2011.

(10) Material contracts and management compenspl#ons and arrangements:

(10.1) 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (includemgendments through February?R16) is incorporated t
reference from our Form 10-K for the year endeddbdwer 31, 2015.

(10.2) Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grawt&kecutive Officers under 3M 2008 Long-Term Indent
Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 8ated May 13, 2008.

(10.3) Form of Stock Option Agreement for optigimanted to Executive Officers under the 3M 2008d-on
Term Incentive Plan, commencing February 9, 204 thdorporated by reference from our FormKLér
the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.4) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreementriestricted stock units granted to Executive Oficender
the 3M Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective Februgy®010, is incorporated by reference from our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.5) Form of 3M 2010 Performance Share Awarcdeuride 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateardit 4, 2010.

(10.6) Form of Stock Option Agreement for U.S. Bogpes under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2008.

(10.7) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreemento$. Employees under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentilean P
is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Ktfar year ended December 31, 2008.

(10.8) 3M 2005 Management Stock Ownership Prodiachuding amendments through February 2, 2016) is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ytlear ended December 31, 2015.

(10.9) Form of award agreement for non-qualifiggtk options granted under the 2005 ManagemenkStoc
Ownership Program, is incorporated by referencenfooir Form 8-K dated May 16, 2005.

(10.10) 3M VIP Excess Plan is incorporated bynefee from our Form 8-K dated November 14, 2008.

(10.11) Amendment of 3M VIP Excess Plan is incoaped by reference from our Form 8-K dated Novenader
2009.

(10.12) 3M VIP (Voluntary Investment Plan) Plusrisorporated by reference from Registration Statem
No. 333-73192 on Form S-8, filed on November 13, 2001.

(10.13) Amendment of 3M VIP Plus is incorporatgd-&ference from our Form 8-K dated November 1980

(10.14) 3M Deferred Compensation Plan, as ametidedgh February 2008, is incorporated by referdroma
our Form 8-K dated February 14, 2008.

(10.15) Amendment of 3M Deferred Compensation Bancorporated by reference from our Form 8-Kedat
Novembe 14, 2008.

(10.16) 3M Deferred Compensation Excess Plancarporated by reference from our Form 10-K forykar
ended December 31, 2009.

(10.17) 3M Performance Awards Deferred Compensaian is incorporated by reference from our FofakKl
for the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.18) 3M Executive Annual Incentive Plan is irparated by reference from our Form 8-K dated Méy 1
2007.
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(10.19) Description of changes to 3M Compensadgtam for Non-Employee Directors is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated August 8, 2005.

(10.20) 3M Compensation Plan for Non-Employee &wes, as amended, through November 8, 2004, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2004.

(10.21) Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nwnployee Directors is incorporated by referencenfro
our Form 8-K dated November 14, 2008.

(10.22) Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nanployee Directors as of August 12, 2013, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Q fer dnarter ended September 30, 2013.

(10.23) 3M Executive Life Insurance Plan, as ameeinds incorporated by reference from our Form lidkihe
year ended Decemt 31, 2003.

(10.24) Summary of Personal Financial PlanningiSes for 3M Executives is incorporated by refeeefrom
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

(10.25) 3M policy on reimbursement of incentive/pants is incorporated by reference from our FofakKIfor
the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10.26) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified RenBian | is incorporated by reference from oumkr8rK
dated December 23, 2008.

(10.27) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified RenBian Il is incorporated by reference from ourmr&-K
dated December 23, 2008.

(10.28) 3M Nongqualified Pension Plan Il is incorpted by reference from our Form 8-K dated Novenide
2008.

(10.29) Policy on Reimbursement of Incentive Congagion (effective May 11, 2010) is incorporated by
reference from our Form 10-Q dated August 4, 2010.

(10.30) Amended and restated five-year creditegent as of March 9, 2016, is incorporated by esfeg from
our Form 8-K dated March 11, 2016.

(10.31) Registration Rights Agreement as of Augyg009, between 3M Company and State Street Badk
Trust Company as Independent Fiduciary of the 3\plegee Retirement Income Plan, is incorporated
by reference from our Form 8-K dated August 5, 2009

Filed herewith, in addition to items, if any, sdexlly identified above:

(12) Calculation of ratio of earnings to fixed opes.

(15) A letter from the Company'’s independent resgisd public accounting firm regarding unaudite@iim
consolidated financial statements.

(31.1) Certification of the Chief Executive Offigeursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,

18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

(31.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes@®Act of 2002, 1
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(32.1) Certification of the Chief Executive Offiggursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,

18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

(32.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaBesey Act of 2002, 1
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(95) Mine Safety Disclosures.

(101) The following financial information from 3Kompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thaeqakr
ended March 31, 2016, filed with the SEC on Mag(®l6, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting
Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated Statemenihobme for the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015, (ii) the Consolidatedestent of Comprehensive Income for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 (iii) thesdbdated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, (iv) the Consolidated StatemE@ash Flows for the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015, and (v) Notes to Constdii&inancial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussddiport to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatp authorized.

3M COMPANY
(Registrant)

Date: May 3, 2016

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangestad,

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Mr. Gangestad is the Principal Financial Officaddas
been duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Reayis.)
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EXHIBIT 12

3M COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

EARNINGS
Income before income taxes

Add:
Interest expense (including amortizatior
capitalized interest)

Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest componer

Less:
Equity in undistributed income of 20-50'
owned companies

TOTAL EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR
FIXED CHARGES

FIXED CHARGES

Interest on debt (including capitalized
interest)

Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest componer

TOTAL FIXED CHARGES

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED
CHARGES

(Millions)
Three months
ended
March 31, Year Year Year Year Year
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
$ 1,746 $ 6,823 $ 7,026 $ 6,562 $ 6,351 $6,031
53 171 164 166 191 206
25 101 104 103 92 85
2 5 1) 1) 3 4
$ 1,822 $ 7,090 $ 7,295 $ 6,832 $ 6,631 $6,318
50 162 159 166 194 206
25 101 104 103 92 85
$ 75 $ 263 $ 263 $ 269 $ 286 $ 291
24.3 27.0 27.7 25.4 23.2 21.7
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EXHIBIT 15
May 3, 2016
Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, DC 20549
Commissioners:
We are aware that our report dated May 3, 2016unmeaview of interim financial information of 3M @wany and its
subsidiaries for the three month periods ended Maig 2016 and 2015 and included in the Companyéstgrly report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 28li6dorporated by reference in its Registratioriedtents on
Form S-8 (Registration Nos. 333-30689, 333-30688;84760, 333-73192, 333-101727, 333-109282, 3B242,
333-130150, 333-151039, 333-156626, 333-156627-188908, 333-174562, 333-181269, and 333-18127@) an
Form S-3 (Registration Nos. 333-196003, 33-48083;82660, and 333-109211) dated May 3, 2016.
Very truly yours,

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
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EXHIBIT 31.1

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Inge G. Thulin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16§@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgdtéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutertbgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tfte@r is reasonably likely to materially affettte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtsaboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatéor

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

May 3, 2016
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EXHIBIT 31.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Nicholas C. Gangestad, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16§@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgdtéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial dionl results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutertbgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tffte@r is reasonably likely to materially affettte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtseboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatéor

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

May 3, 2016
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EXHIBIT 32.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION
In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ethde
March 31, 2016 as filed with the Securities andtz&xge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repdrtihge G.
Thulin, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, tifgr pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adbptgsuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tieaty knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

May 3, 2016
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EXHIBIT 32.2
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION
In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ethde
March 31, 2016 as filed with the Securities andHaxge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtNicholas C.
Gangestad, Chief Financial Officer of the Compameytify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agpsetbpursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tieaty knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

May 3, 2016
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EXHIBIT 95
MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

For the first quarter of 2016, the Company hadalewing mine safety information to report in acdance with Section 1503(a) of the Act, in conracivith the Pittsboro,
North Carolina mine, the Little Rock, Arkansas mitilee Corona, California mine, and the Wausau, @fist mine (including Greystone Plant):

Received
Received Notice of
Total Dollar Value Notice of Potentieto Aggregate
Mine or Operating Section of MSHA TotaNumber Pattern of Have Pattern Legal Actions Aggregate  Legal Actions
Name/MSHA Section 104 Section 104(d) Section ecdion Assessments of Mining Violations Undere8tion Pending as of Legal Actions  Resolved
Identification S&S Citations 104(b) Citations and  110(b)(2) 107(a) Proposed Related Under Sectio 104(e) Last Day of Initiated During During Period
Number #) Orders (#) Orders (#)  Violations (#) Orders (#) ($) Fatalities (#) 104(e) (yes/no) (yes/no) Period (#) Period (#) #)
3M Pittsboro ID: 3102153 — — — — — 3 = — No No —
3M Little Rock ID: 0300426 1 — — — — 3 — — No No —
3M Corona Plant ID: 0400191 — — — — — 3 — — No No —
Greystone Plant ID: 4700119 2 — — — — 3 508 — No No —
Wausau Plant ID: 4702918 — — — — — 3 900 — No No —
Total 3 — — — — 3 1,408 — — — —
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